WAUKEGAN
PORT DISTRICT

AIRPORT . MARINA . PORT

AGENDA

WAUKEGAN PORT DISTRICT
Board Meeting of 20 August 2025 4:00 p.m.
Waukegan National Airport
Administration Office/SRE Bldg.
2601 Plane Rest Drive
Waukegan IL 60087

Call to Order
Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Announcement of Remote Participants

Approval of Remote Participation/Voting

Chairman Remarks

General Counsel Report

Public Comment — (3 minutes per person)

Committee Reports
Airport — Tom Evers, Ben Veal and Bob Hamilton

Development — Ben Veal and Greg Petry

Capital Improvement — Paula Trigg and Jack Dye
Harbor — Gene Bach and Becky Jones
Intergovernmental - Greg Petry and Tom Evers
Finance — Bob Hamilton, Becky Jones and Paula Trigg

Consent Agenda
e June 2025, Financials
e June 2025, Electronic Transfer and Check Approval
e July 2025, Meeting Minutes

Airport General Manager Remarks
e 2025-R-15 Adopting Amendments to the Minimum Standards for Commercial Aeronautical Activities

e 2025-R-16 Approving an Airshow Agreement with Waukegan Regional Airshow

Harbor General Manager Remarks

Board Comments

Adjournment

08/13/25 Final



Chairman’s Remarks




Committee Reports




Treasurer & Finance Report




WAUKEGAN

PORT DISTRICT

AIRPORT. MARINA . PORT

Finance Committee Report

To: WPD Chairman and Board of Directors
From: Bob Hamilton, Chairman
Date: 08-13-2025
Re: Finance Committee
June Check & Financial Review for the August Bd Mtg
Procedure:

All three Transfer and Check Registers and Financials were submitted directly to Becky Jones,

Paula Trigg, and Bob Hamilton for review. (Lagging one month)

All were received and have been submitted to the Committee.

The Committee recommends approval of all, subject to any findings in the next week.

Recommendation:

By:

Approve JUNE All three Check Registers at the AUGUST Meeting

Approve JUNE All three Financials at the AugusT Meeting.

VAN,

Robert B.VHamiIton,
Finance Committee Chairman

(847) 244-3133 » Fax (847) 244-1348
558 Harbor Place
Waukegan. IL 60085
waukeganport.com

Professionally managed by:

F3

MARINA



Consent Agenda




WAUKEGAN
PORT DISTRICT

AIRPORT . MARINA . PORT

MINUTES

WAUKEGAN PORT DISTRICT
Board Meeting of 16 July 2025
4:00 p.m.

Waukegan National Airport
Administration Office/SRE Bldg.
2601 Plane Rest Drive
Waukegan IL 60087

The following Board Members were present:
Gene Bach
Jack Dye
Tom Evers - remote
Becky Jones
Paula Trigg
Ben Veal

The following Board Members were absent:
Greg Petry — present remotely as a member of the public

The following Officer was present:
Bob Hamilton, Treasurer

District Counsel:
Marcus Martinez

Members of the Port District Staff were present:
Edith Guerrero, F3 Airport, Administrative Director, Airport
Joe Seidelmann, F3 Marina, General Manager, Marina
Skip Goss, F3 Airport, Director, Airport
Rebecca Remshak, F3 Real Estate Services, Marina Accountant-remote

Call to Order
The Chairman called the meeting to order at 4:01 pm.
Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Announcement of Remote Participants

Approval of Remote Participation/Voting

On a motion by Mr. Bach, seconded by Ms. Trigg, remote participation was approved on a unanimous voice vote.



WAUKEGAN
PORT DISTRICT

AIRPORT . MARINA . PORT

Chairman Remarks

None

General Counsel Report

Mr. Martinez provided the board with an update regarding ongoing issues related to F Pier. He reported that
discrepancies in the recorded boundary lines have been identified, and steps are being taken to formally correct
the records to reflect accurate property boundaries.

In light of these issues, Mr. Martinez engaged the board in a broader discussion about the importance of having a
comprehensive and current understanding of all harbor property lines. The board agreed that commissioning a full
property survey of the harbor would be a prudent step. Such a survey would not only resolve existing
discrepancies but also help prevent future legal or development complications by establishing clear and
authoritative boundaries.

Public Comment — (3 minutes per person)

Nikki Sullivan, Waukegan Yacht Club Commodore — Ms. Sullivan offered her thanks to marina staff for their
support of the Chicago to Waukegan race.

Committee Reports
e Airport — Tom Evers, Ben Veal and Bob Hamilton — None

e Development — Ben Veal and Greg Petry — The committee reported that the mayor and the city are
focusing efforts on gathering information and not focusing on lake front development conversations at
this time.

e (Capital Improvement — Paula Trigg and Jack Dye — The committee, along with the Harbor General
Manager, met with the architect from the engineering firm to conduct an initial site investigation. A
formal report is expected to follow.

e Harbor — Gene Bach and Becky Jones — The committee met with Mr. Seidelmann. The court date for the
tenant litigation has been scheduled for July 21, 2025. A viable tenant candidate has emerged through the
recent RFP process and may be presented to the board, contingent upon the outcome of the court
proceedings.

e Intergovernmental - Greg Petry and Tom Evers — None

e Finance — Bob Hamilton, Becky Jones and Paula Trigg — the committee recommends approval of the
check registers and financials.

Consent Agenda

e May 2025, Financials
e May 2025, Electronic Transfer and Check Approval
e June 2025, Meeting Minutes

On a motion by Ms. Trigg, seconded by Ms. Jones, the consent agenda was created and approved on a unanimous
roll call vote:



WAUKEGAN
PORT DISTRICT

AIRPORT. MARINA . PORT
Aye: Bach, Evers, Jones, Trigg, Veal
Nay:
Absent: Petry
Abstain:

Agenda
e Approval of Closed Session Minutes — June 18, 2025

Motion by Mr. Veal, seconded by Ms. Trigg. The motion to approve the June 18, 2025 closed session minutes
was approved by unanimous roll call vote.

Aye: Bach, Evers, Jones, Trigg, Veal
Nay:

Absent: Petry

Abstain:

Harbor General Manager Remarks

Mr. Seidelmann provided the board with an update on current marina operations. He reported on slip occupancy
levels, noting trends and any recent changes. He also outlined the status of ongoing repair and maintenance
projects, highlighting key areas of progress.

In addition, Mr. Seidelmann announced a recent staff addition, sharing that a new hire has joined the marina team
to support seasonal and operational needs.

Mr. Seidelmann concluded his remarks with a financial overview of the upcoming Big Duck Event. He
emphasized that the event is fully self-funded and will not require financial support from the Marina’s general

operating budget.

Airport General Manager Remarks

Mr. Goss began his remarks by offering sincere condolences to the families of both the pilots, Ken Serzynski
and Scott Wentz involved in the tragic crash of a UGN-based aircraft earlier in July.

Mr. Goss then provided updates on key operational initiatives. He informed the board that the Request for
Proposals (RFP) for Fixed Base Operator (FBO) services is currently active and outlined the timeline and next
steps for the selection process. He also noted that the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for engineering services
has been issued and is now live, inviting responses from qualified firms.

In addition, Mr. Goss reviewed an item on the agenda that required board approval and noted several lease
agreements that are approaching expiration in the coming months and years. He emphasized the importance of
proactive planning handling expiring leases and requests to extend leases since all the leases have a reversionary
clause for a reason. The clause is there intentionally to assist the airport’s financial self-sufficiency obligation to
the FAA,

A broader policy discussion was raised regarding Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) guidelines as they
pertain to lease expirations. Mr. Goss advised the FAA’s expectations, and the reason for the clause is to take
possession of the property and lease it out at reasonable market value which is more than the low ground rent that
the lessor has had for the last 40 years. This approach ensures compliance with FAA Grant Assurances and


https://www.gurneesalatafh.com/obituary/kenneth-serzynski
https://www.gurneesalatafh.com/obituary/kenneth-serzynski

WAUKEGAN
PORT DISTRICT

AIRPORT . MARINA . PORT

maintains fair and equitable use of assets. Goss maintained that further board discussion and direction is needed
on this subject.

Representatives from Crawford, Murphy & Tilly (CMT) and Signature Flight Support were present during the
meeting. They responded to questions from board members and provided updates on various ongoing
infrastructure and service projects at the airport.

e 2025-R-14 Approving Consent to Sale and Transfer of Lease Agreement for Building Site A-18

Motion by Ms. Trigg, seconded by Mr. Veal. The motion was approved on a unanimous roll call vote:

Aye: Bach, Evers, Jones, Trigg, Veal
Nay:

Absent: Petry

Abstain:

Board Comments

Chairman Dye-There might be a special meeting to approve resolutions for a lease agreement

Ms. Trigg-As a volunteer at the previous airshow it was well worth hosting to see the community response she
offered thanks to the airport GM as well as the harbor GM for his work at the harbor and the recent successful
event there.

Mr. Hamilton-reiterated that the airshow is the largest Lake County community event and great for community
relations.

Mr. Veal-congratulated the General Managers on their work. He is hopeful that the airshow can continue with
possible funding support.

Adjournment

On a motion by Mr. Veal seconded by Ms. Trigg, the meeting was adjourned on a unanimous voice vote at 5:33
pm.

APPROVED:

Chairman



Airport General Manager
Report




W WAUKEGAN
8 NATIONAL

u( AIRPORT

Monthly Airport Executive Summary

Waukegan National Airport

2601 Plane Rest Drive
Waukegan, IL 60087

Monthly Airport Executive Summary
Period Ending: 6/30/2025.

PREPARED BY F|3 Aviation
252 East Highland Avenue Milwaukee,

WI 53202 T 414.271.1111 F 414.249.2155 www.f3-aviation.com F3

AVIATION


hhttps://www.google.com/maps/place/2601+W+Plane+Rest+Dr,+Waukegan,+IL+60087/@42.416305,-87.870386,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x880f8cd9197bfbc3:0x8a9b08fd44aecc2f!8m2!3d42.416305!4d-87.868192
hhttps://www.google.com/maps/place/2601+W+Plane+Rest+Dr,+Waukegan,+IL+60087/@42.416305,-87.870386,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x880f8cd9197bfbc3:0x8a9b08fd44aecc2f!8m2!3d42.416305!4d-87.868192

NATIONAL

5/ '
| E—

=S AIRPORT

Monthly Airport Executive Summary

Property Goals
Goal Status

1. Replacement RWY 5/23 Program 1. FAA Directed EA Update
a. Create New Aviation Forecast a. Q42025
b. Create New Air, Water, and Noise Quality Data b. Q12026
c. Runway Program EA Public Information Meeting c. Q32026
d. Anticipated FONSI Q4 2026 d. Funding negotiations begin.
e. $25M State Grant e. Reappropriatedin 2025

2. FBO Master Lease Expires 09/30/2026 2. Proposals being received in Sept.

General Manager Report

e Airport Committee working on policy options for lease renewals and extensions.

e 6,000’ Replacement Runway Condensed Environmental Assessment Underway.
o FAArrigid sequential process pushed out schedule 5 months.

e FBO Pre-Proposal Conference had 40 attendees. Proposals Due 9/16/2025.

e Engineering Consultant up for 5-year renewal. RFQ in process

e SW Detention Basin Rehabilitation Complete

Accountant Comments

e Currentfinancial position is stable.

e Additional revenues needed to operate as a competitive, growing, professional, well-run, safe, and
serviceable airport. FAA AIP grant funding is increasingly threatened. Financial self-sustainability to
be the priority.

PREPARED BY F|3 Aviation
252 East Highland Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53202 T 414.271.1111 F 414.249.2155 www.f3-aviation.com F 3

AVIATION



Monthly Airport Executive Summary

WAUKEGAN
NATIONAL

AIRPORT

NET OPERATING INCOME (NOI) COMPARISON CURRENT YEAR VS LAST YEAR

160,000

140,000

120,000

100,000

80,000

60,000

Net Operating Income (NOI)

40,000

20,000

\

o\

\\

\\

\\

Jan Feb

Apr

May

Jun Jul Aug

Sep Oct Nov

Dec

et 2025

103,874 1,738

41,681

14,255

53,168

24,695

2024

143,447 13,742

37,560

4,572

26,405

22,413

ACTUAL VS. BUDGET COMPARISON (CURRENT MONTH)

$200,000

$150,000

$100,000

$50,000

$(50,000)

$(100,000)

Revenue

Expenses

NOI

M Actual

$140,110

$115,416

$24,694

M Budgeted

$136,893

$158,196

$(21,303)

= Variance

$3,217

$(42,780)

$45,997

PREPARED BY F|3 Aviation
252 East Highland Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53202

T

414.271.1111 F 414.249.2155

www.f3-aviation.com

F

3

AVIATION




NATIONAL
| AIRPORT

Monthly Airport Executive Summary

May 2025 Operating Income/Expense Variance Highlights

e Income:
e Actual revenues exceeded the budget by 2% primarily due to timing of lease revenues.
e Expense:

e The actual expenses were 73% of budget. The primary expenses under budget for the month were payroll,
maintenance, and legal services. Expenses are expected to equalize to budget through the year.

PREPARED BY F|3 Aviation
252 East Highland Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53202 T 414.271.1111 F  414.249.2155 www.f3-aviation.com F 3

AVIATION



-

Monthly Customs Executive Summary

Waukegan National Airport

2601 Plane Rest Drive
Waukegan, IL 60087

Monthly Customs Executive Summary
Period Ending: 6/30/2025.

§ /
— :’__'/""/ i
[ ALGP!

s~

il ’_l__/
s

U.S. Customs and
order Protection

oo



hhttps://www.google.com/maps/place/2601+W+Plane+Rest+Dr,+Waukegan,+IL+60087/@42.416305,-87.870386,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x880f8cd9197bfbc3:0x8a9b08fd44aecc2f!8m2!3d42.416305!4d-87.868192
hhttps://www.google.com/maps/place/2601+W+Plane+Rest+Dr,+Waukegan,+IL+60087/@42.416305,-87.870386,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x880f8cd9197bfbc3:0x8a9b08fd44aecc2f!8m2!3d42.416305!4d-87.868192

Monthly Customs Executive Summary

Property Goals
Goal Status
1. Breakeven Service Provided by Airport 1. Fees adjusted as necessary
2. Build maintenance reserve 2. Feesadjusted as necessary
3. Maintenance and cleaning 3. On Going

General Manager Report

e New ordinance increased fees to balance expenses and provide for a maintenance reserve

Accountant Comments

e Netoperating income goal is to be breakeven.



160,000.00

140,000.00

120,000.00

100,000.00

80,000.00

60,000.00

40,000.00

20,000.00

0.00

-20,000.00

-40,000.00

Bank BalanceTrend

Jun-24

Jul-24

Aug-24 = Sep-24 = Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24

Jan-25

Feb-25  Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25

Jun-25

«=@-—=CBP-Operating 44,732.7 58,310.3 119,344. 57,996.5 67,592.1 141,861. 13,312.0 17,131.1 96,910.0 113,978. 125,899. 9,112.92 -16,812.
=@==CBP-Investment | 29,263.7 29,354.4 29,484.1 29,607.8 29,725.0 29,831.0 29,946.2 30,054.7 30,151.2 30,264.8 60,462.5 60,681.9 60,910.2

100,000 : : :
Net Operating Income Comparison to Previous Year

80,000 /*\

60,000 / \

40,000 / \
_ 20,000
o
2

0

D A

-60,000 |—of Y

-80,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

——2025| -1,016 | -64,336 | 1,372 | 83,732 | -58,954 @ -1,786

——-2024| -62,802 | 11,866 | -3,945 | -1,728 | 3,083 | -2,117




PROJECT

CMT NO.

Project Start/Notice
to Proceed

18022602.00

CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

August 2018

Original Completion
Date

October 2020

Revised Completion
Date

N/A — FAA directed UGN/CMT to re-
start the project.

Causes of Delay

Per FAA direction, a new project to
complete the EA is underway.

PREVIOUS WORK
1. N/A

UPCOMING WORK

1. Coordination with IDA on reimbursement for WPD local
funds spent on this project.

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS

1. N/A

Completion of a Master Plan, Airport Layout Plan and Environmental Assessment

REPORTING
PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

| SCHEDULE/DELIVERABLESTATUS |

BUDGET

Original CMT Contract: $639,950
Revised CMT Contract: $896,950
Locally Funded

EXTRA WORK ITEMS

CMT has exceeded our revised
contract amount in April 2021.
Additional delays in FAA reviews,
FAA policy changes and additional
LCFPD coordination have led to the
overage.

PERCENT BUDGET
EXPENDED

100%

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

4 {oN|Jey B Perimeter Fence — Phase 5 (Design Phase)

REPORTING
(of" M\ [e 19022602.00 PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

SCHEDULE/DELIVERABLE STATUS BUDGET
Project Design | 1. Project originally let in April, 2021 but CMT Contract: $78,400
Schedule not awarded by IDA Total Project: $899,000
2. Project delayed by Endangered Species Funded 90% Federal, 5% State,
changes and Biological Assessment and 5% Local (F/S/L)
has been paused since 2022 EXTRA WORK ITEMS
3. Revised Final Submittal Due February

Work associated with various
project rebids have caused CMT
to exceed our initial contract fee.

28,2025
4. June 13, 2025 IDOT Letting

Causes of N/A CMT submitted an amendment

Delay request to the IDOT-Division of
Aeronautics (IDA) in July 2025. A

PREVIOUS WORK potential amendment would be

1. Project was bid on April 2025 IDOT Letting. An awardable bid p?id at 90% Federal, 5% State and
was received. However, the low bidder’s bid was deemed 5% Local.
ur?lrle;ponsw_e k;y IDOT and a re-bid on the June IDOT Letting PERCENT COMPLETE
will be required.

2. June 13, 2025 IDOT Letting. One contractor bid and the bid
was within the Engineer’s estimate and appears to be able to
be awarded.

UPCOMING WORK

1. Project award. 1 00%

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS
1. Timeline TBD for potential CMT contract amendment

PROJECT WORK AREA

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

PROJECT

(o/"| B, [eJ8N 20022602.06

SCHEDULE

Project Start December 16, 2021
Fall/Winter 2022

Substantial Completion
Date

Project Completion
Date

Spring 2023

PREVIOUS WORK
1. Punch List
2. Landscaping

UPCOMING WORK
1. Project Close Out

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS

1. CMT Construction Phase Services Amendment approved in
June 2024. Once complete at IDA, it will be paid at 90%
Federal, 5% State and 5% Local.

PROJECT WORK AREA

Rehabilitate Airfield Lighting Phases 1 & 2 (Construction Phase)

REPORTING
PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

BUDGET

CMT Contract: $363,400
Total Project: $4,475,369
Funded 100% Federal

EXTRA WORK ITEMS

This project was substantially
completed in fall 2022 with punch
list and final landscaping and site
restoration to occur in Spring
2023. The Contractor spent
nearly a month longer than
anticipated on final landscaping
and site restoration. CMT
submitted an amendment
request to IDOT-Division of
Aeronautics (IDA) in September
2023. A potential amendment
would be paid at 90% Federal, 5%
State and 5% Local

PERCENT COMPLETE

113%

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

4 {oN|Je4 B Obstruction Removal — Phase 3 (Construction Phase)

o'\ B, (o) 21004101.06

Project Start March 2023
Substantial Completion | July 2023
Date

Project Completion TBD
Date

PREVIOUS WORK

1. Tree Removal and Stump Grinding

2. |Initial Landscaping

3. Site Restoration and Final Landscaping

UPCOMING WORK
1. Lake County SMC Wetland Coordination
2. Continued punchlist landscaping

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS

1. Timeline TBD for potential CMT contract amendment.

PROJECT WORK AREA

REPORTING
PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

SCHEDULE

BUDGET

CMT Contract: $87,400

Total Project: $1,550,000
Funded 90% Federal, 5% State,
5% Local

EXTRA WORK ITEMS

Coordination with Lake County
SMC and incorporation of LCSMC
directed project improvements
significantly exceeded initial
scope assumptions and caused
CMT to exceed our contract fee.
CMT intends to pursue an
amendment with IDOT-Division of
Aeronautics (IDA). A potential
amendment would be paid at
90% Federal, 5% State and 5%
Local.

PERCENT COMPLETE

100%

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

[ d{e)|Se{ M Environmental Assessment — Phase 2 — Biological Assessment

(o1 B, (o) 22004269.00

Project Start/Notice | May 2022
to Proceed

Original Completion | March 2023
Date

Causes of Delay N/A

PREVIOUS WORK

=

Pwn

Conservation Measures

Draft Biological Assessment Submitted to FAA for Review
Coordination with USFWS and FAA

Project completed — no additional WPD funds will be spent

UPCOMING WORK

1. Coordinate with IDA on reimbursement of previously spent

WPD funds.

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS

None at this time.

REPORTING
PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

| SCHEDULE/DELIVERABLESTATUS |

BUDGET

CMT Contract: $397,000
Locally Funded

EXTRA WORK ITEMS

None at this time. Approximately
$20,000 of CMT effort was moved
to a federally funded project.

PERCENT COMPLETE

32%

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

4 {oN|Jey B Rehabilitate South Hangar Pavements — Phase 1 (Construction Phase)

REPORTING
(of "M\ [e N 21004113.06 PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

SCHEDULE BUDGET

Project Start August 1, 2024 CMT Contract: $109,275
Substantial Completion | Pavements opened to traffic in Total Project: $498,000
Date October 2024 Funded 90% Federal, 5% State,
0,
Project Completion Spring 2025 Pl
Date EXTRA WORK ITEMS

None at this time.

PREVIOUS WORK

1. Continued subgrade preparation PERCENT COMPLETE
2. Aggregate base course

3. Asphalt paving

UPCOMING WORK
1. Final Inspection

2. Project Closeout 1 OO%

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS
None at this time.

PROJECT WORK AREA

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



PROJECT

CMT NO.

SCHEDULE

22004512.06

CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

Rehabilitate East Apron (Construction Phase)

REPORTING
PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

Project Start August 5, 2024
Substantial Completion | Opened to Traffic in early
Date December.
Project Completion Minor work items in Spring 2025
Date

Causes of Delay

Contractor difficulties in obtaining
subgrade compaction delayed the
project critical path.

PREVIOUS WORK
1. Pavement Marking
2. Punch List

UPCOMING WORK
1. Project Closeout

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS

None at this time.

PROJECT WORK AREA

BUDGET

CMT Contract: $192,235

Total Project: $2,568,000
Funded 90% Federal, 5% State,
5% Local

EXTRA WORK ITEMS

Additional CMT effort and
subconsultant construction
material testing was required to
assist with compaction of existing
subgrade. CMT has exceeded our
contract fee before project
completion. CMT has submitted
a draft amendment to IDOT-
Division of Aeronautics (IDA) for
review. A potential amendment
would be paid at 90% Federal, 5%
State and 5% Local. Amendment
timing TBD.

PERCENT COMPLETE

117%

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

4 {oN|Jey B Rehabilitate Main Parking Lot (Construction Phase)

REPORTING
(of "\ M\ [e 22004938.06 PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

SCHEDULE BUDGET

Project Start June 16, 2025 CMT Contract: $62,427.58
Substantial Completion | Opened to Traffic on July 2, 2025 Total Project: $468,046
Date Funded with BIL AlG funds: 90%

0, 0,
Project Completion Fall 2025 kederalishisiaterszitocal

Date EXTRA WORK ITEMS
Causes of Delay N/A None at this time.
PREVIOUS WORK PERCENT COMPLETE

1. Asphalt Paving
2. Pavement Marking

UPCOMING WORK
1. Punch List

2: Project Closeout 9 9%

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS
None at this time.

PROJECT WORK AREA

APRON

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

4 {eJ|Sey N Rehabilitate South Hangar Pavements — Phase 2 (Design Phase)

o\ B, [0 )88 24006440.00

Project Schedule 1. Engineering Report (35%)
March 1, 2024

2. Preliminary Plans (80%)
May 10, 2024

3. Final Plans July 26, 2024

4. IDOT Letting September 20,
2024

5. Anticipated Start of Work —

Project deferred

Causes of Delay N/A

PREVIOUS WORK

1. Complete Final Submittal

2. Favorable bids were received on September 26, IDOT
Letting

UPCOMING WORK
1. Project deferred.

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS
None at this time.

PROJECT WORK AREA

REPORTING
PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

SCHEDULE

BUDGET

CMT Contract: $78,200

Total Project: $937,778
Funded with BIL AIG funds: 90%
Federal, 5% State, 5% Local

EXTRA WORK ITEMS
None at this time.

PERCENT COMPLETE

100%

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

4 {oN|Jey B Rehabilitate Taxiway D (Design Phase)

REPORTING
(of "\ M\ [e N 24006512.00 PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

SCHEDULE BUDGET
Project Start/Notice to November 2024 CMT Contract: $152,500
Proceed Total Project: $2,502,000
Project Schedule 1. Engineering Report (35%) Funded 90% Federal, 5% State,
January 10, 2025 5% Local
2. Preliminary Plans (80%) EXTRA WORK ITEMS

March 21, 2025
3. Final Plans April 18, 2025

4. IDOT Letting June 13, 2025
5. Anticipated Start of Work PERCENT COMPLETE

May 1, 2026
Causes of Delay N/A

None at this time.

PREVIOUS WORK

1. Completed Final Design Submittal 97%
2. June 13, 2025 IDOT Letting

UPCOMING WORK

1. June 13,2025 IDOT Letting. Bids were not within Engineer’s
estimate. Coordination with IDA/FAA on-going regarding
project next steps

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS
None at this time.

PROJECT WORK AREA

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

[ {e}|{e¢ M Environmental Assessment — Phase 3

CMT NO.

24006707.00

| SCHEDULE/DELIVERABLESTATUS |

Project Start/Notice | May 2024
to Proceed
Proposed First Quarter 2026

Completion Date

Causes of Delay FAA-related delays to the Forecast
and Runway Length Justification
process may require a shift in the

proposed project completion date.

PREVIOUS WORK

1. Project Formulation and Funding Coordination
2. Water Resources Field Work

3. Forecast and Runway Justification Approval

UPCOMING WORK
1. Composition of Condensed EA document
2. Continued Agency and Stakeholder coordination

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS
None at this time.

REPORTING
PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

BUDGET

CMT Contract: $847,505
Funded 90% State, 10% Local

EXTRA WORK ITEMS

CMT is currently tracking over
budget on this project due to
delays in the Forecast and Runway
Length Justification process. No
action is being taken at this time,
as on-going federal changes to the
NEPA process appear to reduce the
environmental resources required
to be reviewed. These on-going
changes seem likely to favorably
impact the project budget. CMT is
looking to recoup current overages
from these changes.

PERCENT COMPLETE

60%

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT

11



CI I I PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

4 {eJ|Jey M Acquire Snow Removal Equipment

(o/"\ B [oJ88 24007704.00

Project Start/Notice
to Proceed

October 2024

Project Schedule

1. Preliminary Documents December
20,2024

2. Final Documents January 6, 2025
3. Bid Opening February 5, 2026

4. Anticipated Vehicle Delivery
Winter 2025/2026

Causes of Delay

N/A

PREVIOUS WORK

=

Project Award

PwnN

Final Bidding Documents
Bid Opening — Favorable bids received.

FAA Buy American Certification

UPCOMING WORK

1. Continued FAA and manufacturer coordination

WPD ACTION/APPROVALS

None at this time.

PROJECT EXAMPLE

REPORTING
PERIOD Thru August 8, 2025

| SCHEDULE/DELIVERABLESTATUS |

BUDGET

CMT Contract: $42,400

Total Project: 952,400

Funded with BIL AIG funds: 90%
Federal, 5% State, 5% Local

EXTRA WORK ITEMS

None at this time.

PERCENT COMPLETE

69%

WAUKEGAN NATIONAL AIRPORT

12



NATIONAL
AIRPORT

Waukegan Port District
Airport Operations Report

JUNE 2025
AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS
June 2025 June 2024 % Change YTD 2025 YTD 2024 % Change
Local 1,434 746 92.2% 4,774 4,116 16.0%
Itinerant 4,285 4,142 3.5% 18,816 17,455 7.8%
Military 24 39 -38.5% 76 95 -20.0%
Overflights 200 290 -31.0% 994 1,102 -9.8%
Total 5,943 5,217 13.9% 24,660 22,768 8.3%
BASED AIRCRAFT
June 2025 June 2024 June 2023
Single 98 98 93
Twin 10 9 12
Jets 38 40 40
Helicopters 4 4 1
Total 150 151 146
FUEL DELIVERY
June 2025 June 2024 % Change YTD 2025 YTD 2024 % Change
WCAF 54,276 61,527 -11.8% 247,893 245,540 1.0%
Stick & Rudder 4,942 0 NA 14,982 9,989 50.0%
Signature - Jet 127,926 141,715 -9.7% 613,367 686,367 -10.6%
Signature - LL 6,941 6,899 0.6% 29,856 36,534 -18.3%
White Wing 7,630 15,507 -50.8% 62,597 54,547 14.8%
Abbvie 46,473 44,828 3.7% 263,810 291,202 -9.4%
Total 248,188 270,476 -8.2% 1,232,505 1,324,179 -6.9%
CUSTOMS OPERATIONS
June 2025 June 2024 YTD 2025 YTD 2024 % Change
Local 7 13 43 48 -10.4%
Itinerant 2 5 42 24 75.0%

8/13/2025, 4:16 PM Airport Ops Report Master - 2025



WAUKEGAN PORT DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2025-R-15
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AMENDMENTS

TO THE MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR COMMERCIAL
AERONAUTICAL ACTIVITIES

WHEREAS, the Waukegan Port District (“District”) is a political subdivision, body politic, and
municipal corporation established in accordance with the Waukegan Port District Act, 70 ILCS 1865/1, et
seq. (“Act”); and

WHEREAS, the District owns and operates the Waukegan National Airport, a public facility
(“Airport”), for the purposes of: (i) providing modern, safe and efficient landing areas and terminal facilities
for commercial and general aviation users of the Airport (“Airport Users”), and (ii) offering space and
opportunities for Airport Users and commercial vendors catering to Airport Users to store, maintain, and
provide additional ancillary services (collectively, “Airport Activities”); and

WHEREAS, Sec. 4.7 authorizes the District to provide rules and regulations for the operation,
management, and use of the Airport and any facility at the Airport.; and

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2018, the District adopted a written policy for the minimum standards
for commercial aeronautical activities at the Airport (“Minimum Standards”); and

WHEREAS, the Waukegan Port District Board (“Board”) has determined that it is in the best
interest of the District to amend the Minimum Standards as provided in Exhibit A to this Resolution
(“Amended Minimum Standards);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Waukegan Port District Board, Lake County,
Illinois, as follows:

SECTION 1: RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into, and made a part of, this
Resolution as findings of the Board.

SECTION 2: APPROVAL OF AMENDED MINIMUM STANDARDS. The Board hereby
approves, pursuant to the powers granted to the District in the Act, the Amended Minimum Standards in
the form attached to and, by this reference, made a part of this Resolution as Exhibit A.

SECTION 3: ADOPTION OF AMENDED MINIMUM STANDARDS. The Board hereby
adopts, pursuant to the powers granted to the District in the Act and the IPFIA, the Amended Minimum
Standards, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A. To the extent that the provisions of any prior versions
of the Amended Minimum Standards are inconsistent with the provisions of the Amended Minimum
Standards, the prior versions of the Minimum Standards are hereby repealed and are of no further force and
effect.

SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution will be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and approval according to law.

4899-4425-5838, v. 1



PASSED this __ day of ,2025.

APPROVED this __ day of , 2025.
VOTE: AYES =~ NAYS _ ABSENT
Chair

4899-4425-5838, v. 1



EXHIBIT A

AMENDED MINIMUM STANDARDS

4899-4425-5838, v. 1



Minimum Standards
For
Commercial Aeronautical Activities

Waukegan National Airport
Waukegan, Illinois

Presented and approved at a regular meeting of the
Waukegan Port District Board
March 21, 2018

Passed and approved at a regular meeting of the
Waukegan Port District Board
March 21, 2018

April 2, 2018

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



Table of Contents

Content PAGE
SECTION 1 PURPOSE OF MINIMUM STANDARDS ......coooiiiiiiieeteeee e 1
SECTION 2 DEFINITIONS AND APPLICABILITY ..ottt 2
2.1 DEFINIEIONS .....ooiiiiiiiiii ettt et eat e e bt e et e st e st e et e e et e e anee s 2
2.2 Application of Minimum Standards................coooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 10
2.3  Activities Not Covered by Minimum Standards ...............coccooeiiiiiiiiiiniiiiee e 11
2.4 Variance or EXEMPLion ............cooooviiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt e et e e e e aaee s 12
2.5 Conflicting StANAArAS ............oooiiiiiiiiieeee e e e e e e et ee e e eereeeeas 12
SECTION 3 BUSINESS OPERATIONS ...ttt ettt ettt et et s saae e 13
3.1 Employee Conduct and Customer Service Emphasis.................ccccooviiniiiinniiiniineee, 13
3.2  Management Control and SUPerviSION..............coccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeie e 13
3.3  Personnel Training and Certification....................coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 13
3.4  Corporate Identification Requirement....................cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiniinieeeeeeee e 13
SECTION 4 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR FIXED BASE OPERATORS............ccoooviiiiiiiiee 14
4.1 Required Aeronautical ACEIVILIES ..............coooviiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 14
4.2  Aircraft Design Group Serviceability...............cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 14
4.3  Leased Premises SIZe...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee et 15
4.4  Staffing and Employee Qualifications ...............ccooooiiiiiiiiiii e 16
4.5 Insurance ReqQUITEMENTS............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e eeee et e e e et e e et e e s e snaaeee e e ebaeeeeennees 16
4.6 Required FBO SeIVICES.........cc.ooiiiiiiiiieiiiiee ettt ettt e ettt e e e st e e e e sate e e s esnnaeeeeennbaeeeeennees 16
4.7  Optional FBO SEIVICES........cccuviiiiiiiiiieeeiiieeeeiee e eetee et e e e ettt e e e ettt eeesseaeeesennsaeeeeensaeesennssees 21

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



SECTION 5 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR SPECIALIZED AVIATION SERVICE

OPERATIONS (SASO) ...ttt ettt ettt et e st e e et e st e e e ese e beenteeneeseeneeeneenseensenneenes 25
5.1  General REQUITEMIENLS ............c.oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt stee et e et e et e esbbeesbteesbeeesaneees 25
5.2 FHGRE TIaiNI@..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee ettt ettt e et e ettt e ettt e s sbeesnbteesaseeesaseeas 26
5.3 Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance ..............c.cccoooiiiiiiiiiniiieniieeccceeee e 27
5.4  Air Charter or Taxi or Aircraft Management Operations................ccoccoeeviienniiennieennneenneen. 27
5.5  AIrcraft Rental...... ..ottt st s 28
5.6  Avionics Sales and MainteNanCe ................ccoocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee et 28
5.7  Aircraft Storage HANGAIS ...............coooiiiiiiiiiiii et 29
5.8 AIFCIaft SALES .....oooiiiiiiiiie e et ettt st e st e e s 29
5.9  Aircraft Restoration and Refurbishing .................c.occcoiiiiiii e, 30
5.10 Specialized FLying S@IVICES .........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt e e ite e e bre e s eesaaee s 30

SECTION 6 FLYING CLUBS ... .ottt ettt ettt et st sbe e eate b enee 31
6.1  REQUITEINEIILS .......cccuiiiiiiiiiiiieiiie ettt et e st e e st eesabee e tbeesabeessteesnsteesaseeesaseeas 31

SECTION 7 EXHIBITS ..ottt ettt ettt et s et e et e st e beeneesaeenseeneeeseenseensesneenes 32

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



SECTION 1 PURPOSE OF MINIMUM STANDARDS

Waukegan Port District (WPD) owns and operates Waukegan National Airport (Airport), which is
located in Waukegan, Illinois. These Minimum Standards were developed to provide the minimum
threshold entry requirements for those desiring to provide Commercial Aeronautical Activities to the public
at the Airport in the context of fair, equal and not unjustly discriminatory Minimum Standards for the safe
and efficient operation of the Airport. These Minimum Standards are established based upon the conditions
at the Airport, the existing and planned facilities at the Airport, and the current and future aviation role of
the Airport. Any prospective Commercial Operator shall be required to provide the described minimum
level of services to enter into an Agreement, Permit, or Lease with the WPD (each, an “Agreement”) to
operate on the Airport. In summary, these Minimum Standards establish the minimum requirements to be
met by individuals and companies for the privilege of providing Commercial Aeronautical Activities at the
Airport. All commercial operators are encouraged to exceed the “minimum’ in terms of quality of facilities

and/or services. The purpose of these Minimum Standards is to:

1 Promote safety;
Promote the economic health of Airport businesses;
Promote the orderly development of Airport property;

Encourage high quality products, services and facilities to Airport users; and

[V, B N VS N 8

Provide fair and equitable opportunities for commercial aeronautical businesses.
These Minimum Standards are not retroactive. These Minimum Standards shall not affect the current term

or conditions of any existing Agreement properly executed prior to the date of adoption and approval of

these Minimum Standards, unless provided for in the Agreement or when a new Agreement is processed.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



SECTION 2 DEFINITIONS AND APPLICABILITY

2.1 Definitions

The following words, terms and phrases when used herein shall have the meanings ascribed below.

1. AC - Advisory Circular.

2. Aeronautical Activity (or “Aeronautical Activities” or “Activity” or “Activities”) - means any
activity or service that involves, makes possible, facilitates, is related to, assists in, or is required for
the operation of Aircraft, or another Aeronautical Activity, or which contributes to or is required for
the safety of such operations. Aeronautical Activities include, but are not limited to, sale of Aircraft
Fuel and/or lubricants; passenger, crew, and Aircraft ground services; support and amenities;
Tiedown, Aircraft Storage/hangar, Aircraft parking, office, and shop rental/subleasing; Airframe
and Power Plant Maintenance; Avionics Sales and Maintenance; Aircraft Rental; Flight Training;
Air Charter, Taxi; Aircraft Management Operations; Aircraft Sales; sightseeing aerial photography;
aerial spraying and agriculture aviation services; aerial advertising; aerial surveying; and any other
Activities, which in the judgment of the Port District, because of their direct relationship to the
operation of Aircraft or the Airport, can appropriately be regarded as an “Aeronautical Activity.”
For all purposes of these Minimum Standards, all products and services described herein are deemed

to be “Aeronautical Activities”.

3. Agency — means any federal, state, or local governmental entity, unit, agency, organization, or

authority.

4. Agreement — means a written contract executed by the Port District and an Operator, specifying the
terms and conditions under which the Operator may conduct Aeronautical Activity. The Agreement
shall recite the terms and conditions under which the activity will be conducted at the Airport

including, but not limited rights and obligations of the respective parties.
5. Air Charter or Taxi — means the Commercial Aeronautical Activity of providing air transportation

of persons or property for hire by either on a charter basis or as an air taxi operator in accordance

with CFR Part 135.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



6. Aircraft — means any contrivance now known or hereafter invented which is used or designed for
navigation of or flight in air, except a parachute or other contrivance designed for such navigation
but used primarily for safety equipment. This includes airplanes, airships, ultra-lights, balloons,
dirigibles, rockets, helicopters, gliders, gyrocopters, ground-effect machines, sailplanes,

amphibians, seaplanes, drones and UAV’s.

7. Aircraft Fuel — means all flammable liquids composed of a mixture of selected hydrocarbons
expressly manufactured and blended for effectively and efficiently operating an internal
combustion, jet, or turbine engine, which includes, any substance (solid, liquid, or gaseous) used to

operate any engine of an Aircraft or Vehicle.

8. Aircraft Line Service - means providing the necessary Equipment, supplies, and trained personnel
for Aircraft Apron assistance, towing, parking, and tie downs, within the Leased Premises.
Equipment shall be sufficient to facilitate the handling of Aircraft up to and including corporate jets,

as defined by FAA Category A.R.C. D III.

9. Aircraft Management Operations — means a Commercial Operator engaged in the business of
providing Aircraft flight dispatch, flight crews, or Aircraft maintenance coordination on behalf of
an Aircraft Owner.

10. Airport Operations Area (or AOA) — means the area of the Airport used for aircraft landing, takeoff,
or surface maneuvering, including the areas around hangars, navigation equipment and
communication facilities.

11. Aircraft Owner - means any entity holding legal title to an Aircratft.

12. Aircraft Operator — means any entity having possession of the Aircraft.

13. Aircraft Parking and Storage Areas — means those hangar and Apron locations of the Airport
designated by the Port District for the parking and storage of Aircraft.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



14. Aircraft Rental — means the Commercial Activity of renting or leasing Aircraft to the public for

compensation.

15. Aircraft Sales — means the Commercial Activity of the sale of new or used Aircraft through

brokerage, ownership, franchise, distributorship, or licensed dealership.

16. Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance - means the Commercial Activity of providing airframe
and power plant services, which includes service, the repair, maintenance, inspection, constructing, and
making of modifications and alterations to Aircraft, Aircraft engines, propellers and appliances
including the removal of engines for major overhaul as defined in 14 CFR Part 43, as now or hereafter

amended. This category of service also includes the sale of Aircraft parts and accessories.

17. Airframe and Powerplant Mechanic (A&P) — means a person who holds an Aircraft mechanic
certificate with both airframe and powerplant ratings issued by the FAA under the provisions of 14 CFR

Part 65, as now or hereafter amended.

18. Airport - means the Waukegan National Airport, operated by Waukegan Port District, and all land,
Improvements, and appurtenances within the legal boundaries of the Airport as it now exists on the
Airport Layout Plan as currently approved within the Master Plan and as the Airport Layout Plan may

be extended, enlarged, or modified.

19. Airport Layout Plan (ALP) — means the currently approved scale drawing depicting the boundaries
and physical layout of the Airport and identifying the location, type, dimensions and configuration of
existing and proposed infrastructure and improvements, including but not limited to runways, taxiways,
Aprons, buildings, Roadways, utilities, navaids, as well as proposed extensions and reductions of

existing Airport facilities.

20. Airport Reference Codes — FAA Advisory circular 150/5300-13, Airport Design, defines the
Airport Reference Code (ARC) as “a coding system used to relate airport design criteria to the
operational and physical characteristics of the airplanes intended to use the airport.” The ARC is used
to determine design dimensions for the various separation and safety standards, runway protection zones

and object free zones dimensions, surface gradients and threshold sitting standards.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



21. Apron — means those paved areas of the Airport within the non-movement area designated by the

Port District for the loading or unloading of passengers, servicing, or parking of Aircraft.

22. ARINC — means Aeronautical Radio, Inc., a voice communications service utilizing discreet

frequencies between aircraft and a base station.

23. Avionics Sales and Maintenance — means the Commercial Activity of providing for the repair and
service, or installation of Aircraft radios, instruments and accessories. Such operation may include the

sale of new or used Aircraft radios, instruments and accessories.

24. Based Aircraft — means an Aircraft which the owner physically locates at the Airport for a six-
month period, and whenever absent from the Airport, its owner intends to return the Aircraft to the

Airport for long-term storage.

25. Certificate of Insurance — means a certificate provided by and executed by an insurance company

or its authorized representative, evidencing the insurance coverages and limits of an operator.

26. CFR — means the Code of Federal Regulations, as may be amended from time to time, including
those provisions previously known as the Federal Aviation Regulations (FAR) now codified as Title 14

of the Code of Federal Regulations (“14 CFR”).

27. Commercial Activity (or “Commercial Aeronautical Activity” or “Commercial Aeronautical
Activities”) - means any activity (including Aeronautical Activities) conducted at or on the Airport by

any Entity in which:

a. the exchange, trading, buying, or selling of commodities, goods, services or property of any
kind at the Airport; or

b. engaging in any activity (including Aeronautical Activities) on the Airport for the purpose
of securing revenue, earnings, income, and/or compensation, whether or not such revenue,
earnings, and/or compensation are ultimately exchanges, obtained, or transferred; or

c. the offering or exchange of any product, service, or facility on the Airport as a part of other

revenue, earnings, income, and/or compensation producing activity on or off the Airport.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



28. Commercial Operator — means any entity engaging in an Activity which involves, makes possible
or is required for the operation of Aircraft, or which contributes to, or is required for the safe conduct
and utility of such operation of Aircraft, the purpose of such Activity being to generate and/or secure

earnings, income, compensation, and/or profit, whether or not such objectives are accomplished.

29. Commercial Self-Service Fueling — means the Fueling of an Aircraft by the pilot using commercial
Aircraft Fuel pumps installed for that purpose. The Commercial Self-Service Fueling facility may or
may not be attended by the vendor, which is a Fixed Base Operator or an Airport sponsor/operator that
is exercising its right to sell Aircraft Fuel.

30. Contiguous Land — means land that is sharing an edge or boundary or is separated by no more than
a Taxi lane.

31. Department — means the Airport Department of the Waukegan Port District.
32. Director — means the duly appointed Director of the Department or the Director’s designee.

33. Employee(s) — means any individual employed by an Entity or employment agency whereby said
Entity or employment agency collects and pays all associated taxes on behalf of Employee (i.e., social
security and Medicare).

34. Entity (or Entities) — includes any Person, Persons, firm, partnership, limited liability partnership
or corporation, agency, unincorporated proprietorship, association, group, or corporation, other than the
Airport, including any trustee, receiver, assignee, or other similar representative.

35. Equipment — means all property and machinery, together with the necessary supplies, tools, and
apparatus for the proper conduct of the Activity being performed.

36. Exclusive Right — means a power, privilege, or other right excluding or debarring another from
enjoying or exercising a like power, privilege or right. An exclusive right can be conferred either by
express agreement, contract, license, lease and permit, or by any other means.

37. FAA — means the Federal Aviation Administration.

38. Fixed Base Operator (or FBO) — means a full service Commercial Operator who is authorized to
engage in the sale of products, services, and facilities to Aircraft Owners or Aircraft Operator and is
required to provide the following services at a minimum:

a. Aircraft fueling to include Jet Fuel, AvGas, and Aircraft lubricants

6

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



b. Aircraft Line Services
c. Aircraft storage/hangars rentals and Tiedowns

d. Passenger, Crew, and Aircraft ground services, support and amenities

In addition to the required services FBOs may also provide optional services as approved by the
Port District, which may include, but are not limited to: Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance,
Preventative Aircraft Maintenance, Flight Training, Aircraft Rental, Air Charter or Air Taxi,

Aircraft Management Operations, Avionics Sales and Maintenance.

39. Flight Training - means the Commercial Aeronautical Activity of instructing pilots in dual and solo
flight, in fixed or rotary wing Aircraft, and related ground school instruction as necessary to complete
a FAA written pilot’s examination and flight check ride for various categories of pilot’s licenses and
ratings. Flight Training includes any portion of a flight at Waukegan or between two or more airports
or other destinations where the primary purpose is to increase or maintain pilot or crew member

proficiency.

40. Flying Club —means a non-commercial and nonprofit Entity organized for the purpose of providing
its members with any number of Aircraft for their personal use and enjoyment. Aircraft must be vested
in the name of the Flying Club owners on a pro-rata share, and the Flying Club may not derive greater
revenue from the use of the Aircraft than the cost to operate, maintain, and replace the Aircraft and must
be a validly incorporated Not-For-Profit entity as defined in 805 ILCS 105/101.01 et seq., laws of the

State of Illinois.
41. Fuel Storage Area — means any portion of the Airport designated temporarily or permanently by
the Port District as an area in which aviation or motor Vehicle gasoline or any other type of Aircraft

Fuel or fuel additives may be stored or loaded.

42. Fueling or Fuel Handling - the transportation, sale, delivering, dispensing, storage, or draining of

fuel or fuel waste products to or from aircraft, vehicles or equipment.

43. General Aviation — means all aviation with the exception of Aircraft manufacturing, military

aviation, and scheduled commercial air carrier operations. General Aviation Aircraft are utilized for

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



commercial and non-commercial purposes including business/corporate, recreational/pleasure,

charter/air taxi, industrial/special purpose, and instructional.

44. Hazardous Material — means any oil petroleum products, flammable substances, explosives,
radioactive materials, hazardous waste, toxic waste, or toxic substances that is or becomes regulated as
a hazardous material by any governmental authority, agency, department, commission, board or agency,
or any other waste, materials or pollutants which pose a threat to the health and safety of the owners,
occupants, or any persons on entering the Leased Premises or properties adjacent to it and cause the

property to be in violation of any Federal, State or local law, rules or regulation.

45. Improvements — means all buildings, structure and facilities including pavement, concrete, fencing,
signs, lighting, and landscaping constructed, installed or placed on, under or above any land on the

Airport.

46. Lease — means the written contract between the Port District and a Commercial Operator or Non-
Commercial Operator (Lessee) specifying the terms and conditions under which an Operator may
occupy and operate from certain Airport facilities and/or property.

47. Leased Premises — means the land and/or Improvements leased by the Commercial Operator for the
conduct of a Commercial Operator’s Activities.

48. Lessee — means an Entity that has entered into an Agreement with the Port District to occupy, use,
and/or develop land and/or Improvements and engage in Aeronautical Activities.

49. Manager — means the Manager of the Airport or such other employee of the Department as the
Manager may from time to time designate in writing to carry out the duties of the Manager.

50. Minimum Standards — means the qualifications, standards, and criteria, as a condition set forth as
the minimum requirements that are to be met by as a condition for the right to engage in Commercial
Aeronautical Activities at the Airport.

51. Non-Commercial Operator — means an Entity that either owns or leases and operates Aircraft for
personal or recreational purposes. In the case of a business, the operation of Aircraft must be an ancillary
Activity to support the businesses purposes by providing transportation for the exclusive use of its
Employees, agents, and/or customers. In all cases, the Non-Commercial Operator neither offers nor
engages in Commercial Aeronautical Activities. For purposes of these Minimum Standards, all
governmental agencies shall be considered Non-Commercial Operators.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



52. Operator — means either a Commercial Operator or a Non-Commercial Operator.

53. Permit — means an administrative approval issued by the Port District to any person or entity to
conduct Aeronautical Activity on the Airport, or to provide authorized services to based or transient
Aircraft on the Airport, exclusively from facilities and locations where such services are authorized.

54. Port District — means the Waukegan Port District, a political subdivision of the State of Illinois, the
Airport Department and Airport Management and staff having Airport responsibilities designated by
and through the Port District, including the Executive Director.

55. Preventive Aircraft Maintenance - means maintenance that is not considered a major Aircraft
alteration or repair and does not involve complex assembly operations as listed in 14 CFR Part 43, as
now or hereafter amended.

56. Roadway — means any street or road, whether improved or unimproved, within the boundaries of
the Airport and designated for use by ground Vehicles.

57. Rules and Regulations — means the Airport Rules and Regulations, adopted by the Port District, as
may be amended from time to time, or any successor ordinance, rule, or regulation adopted by the
Waukegan Port District Board of Directors.

58. Self-Fueling — means the operation of an unmanned fuel tank and dispensing equipment for the
fueling of an Aircraft by the Aircraft Owner or the Aircraft Owner’s Employee. .

59. Self-Service — means Aircraft refueling, repair, preventative maintenance, towing, adjustment,
cleaning and general services performed by an Aircraft’s Owner or his/her employee or agents on his/her
Aircraft with resources supplied by the Aircraft Owner.

60. Specialized Aviation Service Operation (SASO) - a Commercial Aeronautical Operator that is
authorized to provide any one or combination of the following Activities:
a. Flight Training

o

Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance

Avionics Sales and Maintenance

a o

Aircraft Rental
Aircraft Charter or Taxi and Aircraft Management Operations
Aircraft storage hangars

Aircraft Sales

= @ oo

Aircraft Restoration and Refurbishing

—

Specialized Flying Services

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



2.2

61. Specialized Flying Services — means providing specialized commercial flying services such as
sightseeing tours, aerial photography or surveying, power line or pipeline patrol, firefighting or fire
patrol, air ambulance, airborne mineral exploration, and other air transportation operations specifically

excluded from 14 CFR Part 135, as now or hereafter amended.

62. SOP — means Standard Operating Procedures.

63. Sublease — means a written Agreement, consented to or approved by the Port District in writing,
stating the terms and conditions under which a third-party Operator leases space from a Lessee for the

purpose of providing an Aeronautical Activity at the Airport.

64. Taxi lane — means the portion of the Airport Apron area, or any other area, used for access between

taxiways and Aircraft parking or storage area as designated on the ALP.

65. Taxiway — means a defined path established for the taxiing of Aircraft from one part of the Airport
to another as designated on the ALP.

66. Tiedown — means an area paved or unpaved suitable for parking and mooring of Aircraft wherein

suitable tiedown points are located.

67. UNICOM — means a two-way communication system operated by a non-governmental Entity that

may provide airport advisory information.
68. Vehicle — means any device that is capable of moving itself, or being moved from place to place on
wheels; but does not include any device designed to be moved by human muscular power or designed

to move primarily through the air.

69. Vehicle Parking Area — means any portion of the Airport designated and made available
temporarily or permanently, by the Port District for the parking of Vehicles.

Application of Minimum Standards

10

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

Except as otherwise provided for herein, all Entities conducting Commercial Aeronautical
Activities at the Airport shall, as a condition of conducting such activities, meet or exceed
the requirements of Sections 2 and 3 as well meet the Minimum Standards applicable to
the Entity’s specific activities set forth in subsequent Sections. These Minimum Standards
are the “minimum” requirements to do business on the Airport, and all Entities are

encouraged to exceed such Minimum Standards in conducting their activities.

These Minimum Standards shall not affect any Agreement entered into by the Port District

prior to the effective date of these Minimum Standards, except as otherwise provided for

in such Agreement, in which case these Minimum Standards shall apply to the extent
permitted by such Agreement. These Minimum Standards shall not be deemed to modify
any existing Agreement under which a Commercial Operator is required to exceed these
Minimum Standards, nor shall they prohibit the Port District from entering into or
enforcing an Agreement that requires a Commercial Operator to exceed these Minimum
Standards. If a Commercial Operator desires to modify an existing Agreement, the Port
District may require compliance with these Minimum Standards as a condition of its

approval.

Whenever a SASO conducts multiple activities pursuant to one Lease, license, Permit or
Agreement with the Port District, and the Minimum Standards for one of the Commercial
Operator’s activities are inconsistent with the Minimum Standards for another of the
Commercial Operator’s activities, then the Minimum Standards which are more stringent,
and/or which are most protective of the public’s health, safety and welfare, shall apply.
When one or more activity is conducted, the minimum requirements may vary depending
on the nature of each activity or combination of activities, but shall not necessarily be

cumulative.

2.3 Activities Not Covered by Minimum Standards

Any activities for which there are no specific Minimum Standards established will be addressed by

the Department on a case-by-case basis and set forth in such Commercial Operator’s written Lease,

license, Permit or Agreement with the Port District.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1

11



2.4 Variance or Exemption

24.1

2.4.2

243

The Port District may approve variances to these Minimum Standards when a specific
clause, section, or provision does not seem justified in a particular case because of special
conditions and unique circumstances.

Any variance or exception approved by the Port District shall apply only to the special
conditions or unique circumstances of the particular case under which the variance or
exemption is granted and shall not serve to amend, modify, or alter these Minimum
Standards.

When a specific product, service, or facility is not currently being provided at the Airport,
the Port District may enter into an Agreement with an FBO or SASO with terms and
conditions that are less than those outlined in these Minimum Standards (e.g., lower
Minimum Standards, etc.), only for a limited time period (i.e., pioneering period). The
duration of the pioneering period shall be specified in the Agreement and shall only be

valid during that specific period of time.

2.5 Conflicting Standards

If a provision in these Minimum Standards is found to be in conflict with any other provision of

these Minimum Standards, the provision that establishes the higher standard shall prevail.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1

12



SECTION 3 BUSINESS OPERATIONS

3.1 Emplovee Conduct and Customer Service Emphasis

The Port District works diligently to provide high quality services to the growing needs and requests
from Airport users. As such, the Port District requires its Commercial Operators, businesses, and
tenants to do the same. Consequently, the goal of the Port District is straight-forward: offer the
tenants and users of the Airport, Commercial Operators that provide high quality customer service
by meeting and exceeding customer needs through consistent, responsive, and professional service.

3.2 Management Control and Supervision

Each Commercial Operator is required to employ the necessary quantity of trained staff,

on-duty management and supervisors to provide for the efficient, safe, and orderly compliance with
its Lease, Agreement, sublease or Permit. In addition, each Commercial Operator is required to
control the conduct and demeanor of its personnel and subtenants, as well as to conduct its business
operations in a safe, orderly, efficient and proper manner so as not to unreasonably disturb, endanger
or offend any customers, tenants, or competitive operators.

3.3 Personnel Training and Certification

All Commercial Operator personnel shall be fully qualified and trained or be in training

with supervision, to provide a high-quality standard of courteous, efficient, and safe service to the
general public, customers, and users. Personnel shall meet all Federal, State, and local training and
certification requirements applicable to their individual duties and company services.

34 Corporate Identification Requirement

34.1 Personnel

All personnel employed by the Commercial Operator to perform Aeronautical Activities
on the Airport are required to be appropriately dressed and identifiable while on duty. The
Commercial Operator’s business name shall be included in the means of identification of
each employee. This identification shall include the name of the Commercial Operator
and name of the employee.

3.4.2 Buildings, Vehicles, and Equipment
Each building, Vehicle, and piece of mobile or vehicular Equipment used on the Airport
in conjunction with the Commercial Activity shall bear the Commercial Operator’s
identification in the form of a company logo, sign, emblem, or other means to designate
the operator to whom the building, Vehicle, or Equipment is assigned. Identification shall

13

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



be legible on a contrasting background and shall be displayed in a manner that is acceptable
to the Port District.

SECTION 4 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR FIXED BASE OPERATORS

4.1 Required Aeronautical Activities

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

An FBO is a full service Commercial Operator who is authorized to engage in the sale of
products, services, and facilities to Aircraft operators and is required to provide the
following services at a minimum:

Aircraft Fueling which shall include Jet Fuel, Avgas, and Aircraft lubricants

Aircraft Line Services

Aircraft storage hangars

Passenger, Crew, and Aircraft ground services, pilot supplies, support and amenities
Flight briefing capabilities including weather

a0 T

FBOs may also provide optional services as approved by the Port District, which may
include, but are not limited to: Flight Training, Aircraft Rental, Aircraft Sales, Air Charter
or Air Taxi, Aircraft Management Operations, Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance and
Avionics Sales and Maintenance.

Only FBOs shall be permitted to provide commercial Aircraft Fueling services and operate
retail Aircraft Fueling facilities at the Airport.

FBOs may subcontract or use third-party operators to provide any of the required FBO
services, or optional services, with the exception of Aircraft Fueling and Aircraft Line
Services, which services must be provided directly by FBO and its Employees.
Subcontractors and third-party operators shall meet all Minimum Standards applicable to
such services when performed by an FBO and operate from the primary FBO Leased
Premises.

Each FBO shall conduct its business and activities on and from the Leased Premises in a
safe and professional manner consistent with the degree of care and skill exercised by
experienced FBOs providing comparable products, services, and activities from similar
airports in like markets.

4.2 Aircraft Design Group Serviceability

4906-8465-1102, v. 1

14



Each FBO shall provide the personnel, Equipment, and facilities required to service all  types of
Aircraft normally frequenting the Airport. The Airport Reference Code (ARC) to be supported is
category ARC D III, which includes aircraft up to an approach speed of 141 knots and up to but less
than 166 knots and wingspans up to 93 feet.

4.3  Leased Premises Size

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

4.3.5

4906-8465-1102, v. 1

Minimum Leased Premises Requirements

Buildings & Leasehold Minimum Size
Total Leased Premises 5 acres
FBO Terminal 5,000 square feet
Storage Hangar 12,000 square feet
Aircraft Storage Hangar Offices 1,000 square feet
Apron (within the Leased Premises) 100,000 square feet
Fuel Storage Area 10,000 square feet

Buildings and FBO Leaseholds

Each FBO shall lease from the Port District a minimum of five (5) acres of land. Each
FBO shall lease or construct, on the Leased Premises, a public use terminal building with
a minimum of five thousand (5,000) square feet of floor space for customer lobby, office,
pilot’s lounge, flight planning and weather briefing area, and public rest rooms.

Vehicle Parking

Each FBO shall provide parking as required by the City of Waukegan Municipal
Ordinance, as now or hereafter amended, or as required by other applicable laws.

Aircraft Parking

Each FBO shall lease from the Port District sufficient Airport property for its Aircraft
operating area (Apron), independent of any building area, Vehicle Parking Area, and
Aircraft Fuel sStorage Area. This paved Apron area shall be a minimum of one hundred
thousand (100,000) square feet and adequate to support all the activities of the FBO and
all approved subtenants and shall be constructed to engineering standards for the current
Airport design Aircraft as defined in the existing Airport Master Plan.

Hours of Operation

15



Each FBO is required to be open for business and provide Aircraft Fueling and Aircraft
Line Services a minimum of 14 hours per day, seven (7) days per week, except as
otherwise approved in writing by the Department.

Service hours for optional FBO services are listed in their specific categories in Section 4.7.

Except as otherwise approved in writing by the Department, business hours shall be
provided to the Department upon request.

4.4 Staffing and Employee Qualifications
4.4.1 Staffing

During the required hours of operation, each FBO shall employ and have on duty sufficient
staff to meet the Minimum Standards for each Aeronautical Activity provided. However,
multiple responsibilities may be assigned to Employees where feasible. Each FBO shall
have at least two (2) Employees on duty at all times during hours of operation. The FBO
will provide to the Department a current written statement of the names, addresses,
telephone numbers and other necessary contact information for all personnel responsible
for the operation and management of the FBO. In addition, the Department shall be
provided a point-of-contact with phone numbers for emergency situations.

4.4.2 Employee Qualifications

All FBO Aircraft Fuel handling personnel shall be trained in the safe and proper handling,
dispensing, and storage of Aircraft Fuel. Acceptable training shall be NATA Safety 1% or
an equivalent training program.

4.5  Insurance Requirements
Each FBO shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance required by the Port District. Each
FBO shall at all times maintain, at a minimum, the types of insurance in the amounts set forth in
Exhibit “A”.

4.6 Required FBO Services
Each FBO shall be required to provide, at a minimum, the following services at the Airport:

A. Aircraft Fuel
(1) Each FBO must provide the sale and into-plane delivery of common and recognized
brands of Aircraft Fuels, lubricants and other aviation petroleum products. Each
FBO shall provide, store, and dispense 100LL/Avgas and Jet-A Aircraft Fuel. All
Equipment used for the storage and/or dispensing of Aircraft Fuel must meet all
applicable Federal, State, local laws, rules and regulations. The location of the

16

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



4906-8465-1102, v. 1

@)

(€))

“)

S))

()

Aircraft Fuel Storage Area shall be in conformance with the Airport’s Master Plan
and approved by the Port District.

Each FBO shall manage/and provide a stationary Aircraft Fuel Storage Area
encompassing a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) square feet, with safety features
and filtration systems to ensure Aircraft Fuel quality. Each FBO shall ensure that all
Aircraft Fuel is delivered clean, bright, pure and free of microscopic organisms,
water, or other contaminants. Ensuring the quality of the Aircraft Fuel is the sole
responsibility of the FBO.

The 100LL/Avgas and Jet-A Aircraft Fuel Storage Area tanks shall each be a
minimum of ten thousand (10,000) gallon capacity for 100LL/Avgas and a
minimum of twelve thousand (12,000) gallon capacity for Jet-A. The FBO shall
also provide mobile or stationary dispensing Equipment and two (2) or more
personnel on duty 14-hours per day, seven (7) days a week, to serve the Airport’s
Aircraft Fuel demand. Filter-equipped Aircraft Fuel dispensers with separate
dispensing pumps and meter systems for each grade of Aircraft Fuel shall be
provided. All metering devices must be inspected, checked and certified annually
by appropriate local and State agencies. Aircraft Fuel storage facility tanks shall
meet all applicable Federal, State and local laws, and the Rules and Regulations.

Each FBO shall, at its own expense, maintain the Aircraft Fuel Storage Area, all
improvements thereon, and all appurtenances thereto, in a presentable condition
consistent with good business practices and in accordance with the appropriate
rules, regulations and requirements at the time of construction and any mandated
upgrades. The Aircraft Fuel Storage Area must remain securely locked with all
signage required by law.

Each FBO shall provide operating and fully functional Aircraft fueling trucks of
which at least one shall contain a minimum capacity of five thousand (5,000) gallons
for Jet-A and at least one shall contain one thousand (1,000) gallons for
100LL/Avgas fuel. Each Aircraft fueling Vehicle shall be equipped with metering
devices that meet all applicable Federal, State, local laws, rules and regulations. The
Aircraft fueling Vehicle dispensing Jet-A Aircraft Fuel shall have over the wing and
single point servicing capability. All fueling vehicles must be clearly marked with
product identification and safety information.

Each FBO shall operate an Aircraft Fuel Storage Area designed in accordance with
all Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the State of Illinois regulations
including proper Aircraft Fuel spill prevention features and containment
capabilities. In addition, each FBO shall provide a current copy of their Aircraft
Fuel spill prevention, countermeasures, and control plan (SPCCC) to the

Department thirty (30) days prior to commencing operations. DEP standards and
17



4906-8465-1102, v. 1

(M

®

(€))

inventory details will be provided to the Department monthly, including total of
gallons delivered by type and date.

Each FBO shall conduct the lawful, sanitary, and timely handling and disposal of
all solid waste, regulated waste, and other materials including, but not limited to,
sump Aircraft Fuel, used oil, solvents, and other regulated waste. The piling and
storage of crates, boxes, barrels, containers, refuse, and surplus property is not
permitted upon the Leased Premises.

The FBO shall develop and maintain SOP for Aircraft Fuel and ground handling
operations and shall ensure compliance with standards set forth in FAA Advisory
Circular 00-34, Aircraft Ground Handling and Servicing, as now or hereafter
amended. The SOP shall address bonding and fire protection, public protection,
control of access to the Aircraft Fuel storage facility, and marking and labeling of
Aircraft Fuel storage tanks and Fuel dispensing Equipment, and shall be submitted
to the Department prior to the FBO commencing Fueling activities.

Additionally, each FBO shall comply with the, 41 Ill. Admin. 180.23, and 180.10
FAA Advisory Circular 150/5230-4, Aircraft Fuel Storage, Handling, and
Dispensing on Airports, Airport Rules and Regulations, and all other applicable
Federal, State and local laws related to Aircraft Fuel handling, dispensing, sale and
storage. Each FBO shall obtain all applicable Aircraft Fueling certifications and
permits, and receive periodic refresher training as required. The Port District and/or
the FAA may periodically conduct inspections of the FBO activities and facilities
to ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, and these Minimum
Standards.

(10) Each FBO shall provide, at a minimum, the required supply of properly located,

type, size and operable fire extinguishers and other safety Equipment. All fire
extinguisher certifications must be current. Fire extinguishers shall be maintained
within all hangars, on Apron areas, at Aircraft Fuel Storage Area, and on all ground
handling and Fueling Vehicles as required by applicable State and local fire codes
for the type of operations conducted.

(11) Each FBO shall provide monthly Aircraft Fuel inventory reconciliation reports to

the Department listing the total amounts of Aircraft Fuel delivered to the site.

18



B. Commercial Self-Service Fueling

C.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1

0y

2

©))

“)

S))

(6)

(7

A FBO may provide Commercial Self-Service Fueling Equipment in addition to
the required Aircraft Fuel Equipment set forth in Sections 4.6, A.1-11, with the
prior written consent of the Department. Commercial Self-Service Fueling
Equipment must be in compliance with all applicable Federal, State, local laws,
rules and regulations and cannot be substituted for the required full-service Aircraft
Fueling Equipment set forth in Sections 4.6.A.1-11.

The Department may authorize an FBO to provide and operate Commercial Self-
Service Fueling Equipment if Airport activity, market demand, and safety criteria,
justify such an operation.

Any FBO authorized to provide Commercial Self-Service Fueling services at the
Airport shall provide, at a minimum, 100LL/Avgas aviation gasoline. The products
and Equipment must meet all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, rules,
regulations, and requirements, including but not limited, to applicable FAA
Advisory Circulars.

The Aircraft Fuel storage areas are the locations on the Airport designated
temporarily or permanently by the Department as the only areas in which Aircraft
Fuel may be stored or dispensed.

The Aircraft Fuel storage and dispensing Equipment shall meet all applicable
Federal, State, local laws, rules, regulations and requirements, including, but not
limited to, 41 I1l. Admin. 180.23 and 180.10 and FAA Advisory Circular 150/5230-
4, as now or hereafter amended.

Each FBO providing the Commercial Self-Service Fueling services shall be
knowledgeable of and comply with all Federal, State, and local environmental
laws, and rules and regulations. Each FBO shall provide the Department with a
current Fuel spill prevention, countermeasures, and control plan (SPCCC) that
contains methods and procedures to prevent, control, and clean up an Aircraft Fuel
spill on Airport property.

Each FBO authorized to install and maintain a Commercial Self-Service Fueling
system shall provide quarterly Aircraft Fuel inventory reconciliation reports to the
Department listing the total amounts of Aircraft Fuel delivered to the site. The
storage tank for this facility shall be a minimum of 10,000 gallons.

Aircraft Line Services

Each FBO shall provide necessary Equipment, supplies, and two (2) trained Employees
for Aircraft Apron assistance, towing, parking, and Tiedowns, within the Leased

19



E.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1

Premises. Equipment shall be sufficient to facilitate the handling of Aircraft up to and
including small corporate jets as defined by FAA Category ARC D III. Equipment shall
consist of at least one (1) tug, one (1) ground power unit, one lavatory cart, one universal
tow bar, and one tow bar with changeable heads for turbine aircratft.

While each Aircraft incident or accident removal is the responsibility of the Aircraft
Owner/operator, the FBO shall be prepared to lend assistance within thirty (30) minutes
upon request in order to maintain the operational readiness of the Airport. The FBO shall
prepare an Aircraft removal plan and have the equipment available that is necessary to
remove Aircraft normally frequenting the Airport within two (2) hours following the
incident or accident unless otherwise instructed by Airport Manager, local law
enforcement or first response personnel

Passenger, Crew, and Aircraft ground services, support and amenities
Each FBO shall provide the following services and concessions inside the FBO terminal
building located within the Leased Premises:

(1) Customer service counter;

(2) Public lounge and waiting area;

(3) Flight planning work area with Flight Service Station and weather service
communication links;

(4) Public telephones;
(5) Snack food and beverage machines; and

(6) Local ground transportation contacts.

Aircraft Storage Hangars
Each FBO or sub-lessee of FBO engaging in Aircraft storage hangar activities shall:

(1) Lease the necessary amount of land to accommodate the proper quantity and
required size of hangars. The minimum land area shall be at the sole discretion of
the Department and shall be dependent upon the number and size of hangars
proposed.

(2) The FBO shall provide at least one hangar containing a total hangar area of not less
than 12,000 square feet, plus 1,000 square feet of office, restroom and storage area.
Each Aircraft hangar of the FBO must be a minimum of five thousand (5,000)
square feet.

20



(3) Provide contact name and phone numbers, hangar availability, and rental rates
known to prospective customers via posted informational sign inside each FBO
terminal.

(4) Provide a listing of all Aircraft stored within the FBO’s or sub-lessee’s hangar
facilities to the Department semi-annually.

(5) Ensure that hangar tenants only perform preventive Aircraft maintenance within the
hangar on their own Aircraft to the extent permitted in 14 CFR Part 43, as now or
hereafter amended. Painting, welding, and any type of Hazardous Material storage
shall not be permitted within Aircraft hangars unless authorized specifically by the
Department in writing. The piling and storage of crates, boxes, barrels, containers,
refuse, and surplus property shall not be permitted.

(6) Provide a waste oil receptacle within the immediate vicinity of the hangar(s). This
receptacle shall be capable of holding a minimum of fifty (50) gallons, have
secondary containment protection and be emptied at regular intervals and be in
compliance with all regulatory requirements as now or hereafter amended.

(7) Have a minimum of two (2) trained personnel on duty during the operational hours.

4.7  Optional FBO Services
Each FBO may provide Aeronautical Activities at the Airport in addition to the required FBO
services with the consent of the Port District, which may include, but are not necessarily limited to,
the services listed below. Any FBO providing optional FBO services, either directly or through a
sub-lessee or subcontractor, shall comply with the standards set forth in this Section 4.7, in addition
to all other applicable Minimum Standards (See 5.1.1).

Type of Activity Minimum Office Space Minimum Hangar Space
Flight Training 500 Not required
Air Charter or Taxi or Aircraft 500 Not required
Management Operations
Aircraft Rental 250 Not required
Avionics Sales and Maintenance 250 2,500
Airframe and Power Plant 500 2,500
Maintenance

A. Flight Training
Each FBO or sub-lessee of an FBO engaging in Flight Training Services shall:

21

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



(1) Operate the service from a minimum of five hundred (500) square feet of classroom and
office space within the FBO’s Leased Premises and have immediate access to customer
lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(2) Employ and make available at least two (2) or more FAA certified flight instructors as
necessary to meet the Flight Training demand and schedule requirements.

(3) Own or lease one (1) or more airworthy Aircraft necessary to meet the Flight Training
demand and schedule requirements. Aircraft may be fixed or rotary wing.

(4) Flight Training operations shall include adequate mock-ups, pictures, slides, filmstrips,
movies, videotapes, or other training aides necessary to provide proper and effective
ground school instruction.

B. Air Charter or Taxi and Aircraft Management Operations

Each FBO or sub-lessee of FBO engaging in Air Charter or Taxi or Aircraft Management
Operations shall:

(1) Operate the service from not less than five hundred (500) square feet of office
space within the FBO’s Leased Premises and have immediate access to customer
lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(2) Employ and make available at least two (2) Employees who hold current FAA
commercial pilot certificates and current Class I or II medical certificates. In
addition, all flight personnel shall be properly rated for the Aircraft operated.

(3) Have dispatch capability within four (4) hours of a customer request, and employ
at least one (1) person with experience and ability to provide charter quotes,
schedule and dispatch support and customer service.

(4) Be open and services available five (5) days per week, eight (8) hours per day.

(5) Own or lease or manage at least two (2) certified and continuously airworthy
instrument qualified multi-engine Aircraft.

(6) Have and display in the public office, a current 14 CFR Part 135 Air Taxi
Certificate or provisional FAR Part 135 Certificate, in addition to, the Aircraft
identification page from the operating specifications manual of each Aircraft
listed on the certificate.

(7) Have and display in the public office a current copy of 14 CFR Part 133 for
rotorcraft operations detailing the external-loading requirements.

(8) Aircraft Management activities must be operated in accordance with the
provision as specified in 14 CFR Part 91 as now or hereafter amended.

22

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



C. Aircraft Rental
Each FBO or sub-lessee of FBO engaging in Aircraft Rental services shall:

(1) Operate the service in a minimum of two hundred fifty (250) square feet of office
space within the FBO’s Leased Premises and have immediate access to customer
lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(2) Employ and have on duty at least two (2) Employees having a current
commercial pilot certificate with appropriate ratings, including instructor rating.

(3) Keep the premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours per
day, six (6) days a week.

(4) Have available for rental or use in Flight Training, either owned or leased and
under exclusive control of Commercial Operator, a minimum of two (2) certified
and airworthy Aircraft.

D. Avionics Sales and Maintenance
Each FBO or sub-lessee of FBO engaging in Avionics Sales and Maintenance shall:

(1) Operate the service in a minimum of two hundred fifty (250) square feet of space
for operations, bench testing and administration within the FBO’s Leased
Premises have immediate access to customer lounge, public telephones, and
restrooms.

(2) Have an additional two thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet of hangar space
to work on Aircraft.

(3) Employ and have on duty at least one (1) trained and FAA certified technician.

(4) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours a day,
five (5) days a week.

E. Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance
Each engaging in Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance shall:

(1) Operate the service form a minimum of two thousand five hundred (2,500) square
feet of ventilated hangar and shop space and have immediate access to customer
lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(2) Have an additional five hundred (500) square feet for management, record
keeping and reception areas.

23

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



4906-8465-1102, v. 1

(3) Employ and have on-duty a minimum of one (1) FAA certified technicians who
Possess an airframe, power plant, or Aircraft inspector rating as specified in 14
CFR Part 65, as now or hereafter amended, or the maintenance facility shall be
certified under and satisfy all the requirements as specified in 14 CFR Part 145,
as now or hereafter amended.

(4) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours daily,
five (5) days a week. A technician shall also be available twenty—four (24) hours
a day, seven (7) days a week on-call for emergencies, with a response time of
not more than two (2) hours. If more than one (1) Airframe and Power Plant
Maintenance facility is located on the Airport, this responsibility may be rotated
on a mutually agreeable rotating on-call schedule.

(5) Provide Equipment, supplies and parts required for Aircraft airframe, power

plant, inspection, tire, batter, oxygen, and other routine Aircraft maintenance
functions appropriate for the type of Aircraft serviced.

24



SECTION S MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR
SPECIALIZED AVIATION SERVICE OPERATIONS (SASO)

5.1 General Requirements

5.1.1 Compliance

In addition to the general requirements set forth in Sections 2 and 3, SASOs leasing Airport property
directly from the Department shall be required to comply with applicable Minimum Standards as
set forth in this Section 5. A SASO leasing Airport property as a sub-lessee of an FBO shall be
required to comply with all the Minimum Standards as set forth in Section 4 above, in addition to
the general requirements set forth in Sections 2 and 3. SASOs shall not be permitted to provide
commercial Aircraft Fueling services.

5.1.2  Leased Space Requirement
Type of Activity Minimum Office = Minimum Hangar = Minimum Land Lease
Space Space
Flight Training 500 square feet Not Required 10,000 square feet

Airframe and
Powerplant Mechanic

Air Charter or Taxi or
Aircraft Management
Operations

Aircraft Rental

Avionics Sales and
Maintenance

Aircraft Storage Hangar

Aircraft Sales

Aircraft Restoration or
Refurbishing

Specialized Flying
Services

4906-8465-1102, v. 1

500 square feet

500 square feet

500 square feet

500 square feet

300 square feet

500 square feet
500 square feet

500 square feet

2,500 square feet

Not Required

Not Required

4,000 square feet

5,000 square feet

Not Required
2,500 square feet

Not Required

25

5,000 square feet

10,000 square feet

5,000 square feet

6,000 square feet

7,000 square feet

5,000 square feet
5,000 square feet

5,000 square feet



5.1.3 Responsible Personnel

Each SASO shall have at least the number of Employees as specified below on duty at all
times during hours of operation, and provide to the Department a current written statement
of the names, addresses, telephone numbers and other necessary contact information for all
personnel responsible for the operation and management of the SASO. In addition, the
Department shall be provided a point-of-contact with phone numbers for emergency
situations.

5.1.4. Insurance Requirements

Each SASO shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance required by the Port District.
Except as otherwise required by the Port District, each SASO shall at be required, at a
minimum, the types of insurance in the amounts set forth in Exhibit “A”.

5.2 Flight Training
SASOs engaging in Flight Training services shall:_
(1) Lease not less than ten thousand (10,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft parking,
auto parking and green space.

(2) Operate the service from a minimum of five hundred (500) square feet of classroom and office
space on the Airport and have immediate at a minimum; customer lounge, public telephones,
and restrooms.

(3) Employ and make available at least two (2) Employees that are FAA certified flight instructors
necessary to meet the Flight Training demand and schedule requirements.

(4) Own or lease two (2) or more airworthy Aircraft necessary to meet the Flight Training demand
and schedule requirements. Aircraft may be fixed or rotary wing.

(5) Include adequate mock-ups, pictures, slides, filmstrips, movies, videotapes, or other training
aides necessary to provide proper and effective ground school instruction. All materials shall
meet FAA requirements for the training offered.

(6) Lease or Sublease space to comply with the City of Waukegan parking requirements.

(7) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours a day, six (6) days a
week.

26

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



5.3 Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance
SASOs engaging in Aircraft Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance shall:

(1) Lease not less than ten thousand (5,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft parking,
auto parking and green space.

(2) Operate the service from a minimum of two thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet of
ventilated hangar and shop space and five hundred (500) square feet of office space on the
Airport and provide a customer lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(3) Employ and have on-duty a minimum of one (1) FAA certified technician who possesses an
airframe, power plant, or Aircraft inspector rating as required in 14 CFR Part 65, as now or
hereafter amended, or the maintenance facility must be certified under 14 CFR Part 145, as now
or hereafter amended.

(4) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours per day, five (5) per
week. A technician shall also be available on-call twenty-four (24) hours, seven (7) days for
emergency purposes only. If more than one (1) maintenance facility is located on the airport
the on-call responsibility may be rotated on a mutually agreeable schedule.

(5) Provide Equipment, supplies and parts required for Aircraft airframe, power plant, inspection,
tire, battery, oxygen, and other routine Aircraft maintenance functions.

5.4 Air Charter or Taxi or Aircraft Management Operations
SASOs engaging in Air Charter or Air Taxi or Aircraft Management Operations shall:

(1) Lease not less than ten thousand (10,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft parking,
auto parking, and green space.

(2) Operate the service from a minimum of five hundred (500) square feet of office space on the
Airport and provide a customer lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(3) Employ and make available at least two (2) employees who hold current FAA commercial pilot
certificate, current Class I or II medical certificate. In addition, all flight personnel shall be
properly rated for the Aircraft operated. The SASO shall have dispatch capability within four
(4) hours of a customer request. Employ at least one (1) employee with experience and ability
to provide charter quotes, schedule and dispatch support and customer service.

(4) Own or lease or manage at least one (1) certified and continuously airworthy instrument
qualified multi-engine Aircratft.

27

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



5.5

5.6

(5) Have and display in the public office, a current 14 CFR Part 135 Certificate or provisional 14
CFR Part 135 Certificate, in addition to the Aircraft identification page from the operating
specifications manual of each Aircraft listed on the certificate.

(6) Have and display in the public office a current copy of 14 CFR Part 133 for rotorcraft operations
detailing the external-loading requirements.

(7) Aircraft Management activities must be operated in accordance with the provision as specified
in 14 CFR Part 91 as now or hereafter amended.

Aircraft Rental
SASOs engaging in Aircraft Rental services shall:

(1) Lease not less than five thousand (5,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft parking,
auto parking and green space.

(2) Operate the service in a minimum of five hundred (500) square feet of office space on the Airport
and provide a customer lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(3) Employ and have on duty at least two (2) Employees having a current commercial pilot
certificate with appropriate ratings, including instructor rating.

(4) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours per day, six (6) days
a week.

(5) Have available for rental, a minimum of two (2) owned or leased, certified, and airworthy
Aircraft.

Avionics Sales and Maintenance
SASOs providing Avionics Sales and Maintenance shall:

(1) Lease not less than six thousand (6,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft parking,
auto parking and green space.

(2) Operate the service in a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square feet of hangar and shop
space, and no less than five hundred square feet (500) of office space on the Airport and provide a

customer lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(3) Employ and have on duty at least one (1) trained and FAA certified technician and one (1)
administrative or customer service employee.

(4) Provide for the sale of new or used Aircraft avionics, radios, instruments, and accessories.

28

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



(5) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days
a week.

(6) Hold the appropriate FAA repair station certificates for the types of Equipment  the SASO
plans to service and/or install.

5.7 Aircraft Storage Hangars
SASOs engaging in the business of renting and leasing hangars storage space to Aircraft Owners or
operators solely for Aircraft storage purposes shall:

(1) Lease not less than seven thousand (7,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft
parking, auto parking and green space.

(2) Operate the business in a hangar of no less the five thousand (5,000) square feet of hangar and
no less than three hundred (300) square feet of office space on the Airport office and Aircraft
storage space on the Airport and provide a customer lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(3) Provide a list the Based Aircraft stored within the SASO hangar facilities to the Department
semi-annually.

(4) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days
per week.

(5) Ensure that hangar tenants only perform preventive Aircraft maintenance within the hangar on
their own Aircraft to the extent permitted in 14 CFR Part 43, as now or hereafter amended.
Painting, welding, and any type of Hazardous Material storage shall not be permitted within
Aircraft hangars unless authorized by the Department in writing. The piling and storage of
crates, boxes, barrels, containers, refuse, and surplus property shall not be permitted.

(6) Provide a waste oil receptacle within the immediate vicinity of the hangar(s). This receptacle
shall be capable of holding a minimum of fifty (50) gallons, have secondary containment
protection, and be emptied at regular intervals, and be in compliance with all regulatory
requirements, as now or hereafter amended.

5.8 Aircraft Sales
SASOs engaging in new and/or used Aircraft Sales shall:

(1) Lease not less than five thousand (5,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft parking,
auto parking and green space.

(2) Operate the service in a minimum of five hundred (500) square feet of office space on the Airport
and provide a customer lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

29

4906-8465-1102, v. 1


Roberta Thompson
At this size hangar some process for moving multiple aircraft in and out needs to be required.


5.9

5.10

(3) SASO must lease or sublease space to comply with the Vehicle parking requirements of the City
of Waukegan, as now or hereafter amended, or other applicable laws.

(4) Employ and have on duty at least one (1) qualified Aircraft salesperson and access to a
demonstration pilot that has a current commercial pilot certificate with appropriate Aircraft type
ratings.

(5) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days
per week.

Aircraft Restoration and Refurbishing
SASOs engaging in Aircraft restoration and refurbishing of Aircraft structures, propellers,
accessories, interiors, exteriors, and components shall:

(1) Lease not less than five thousand (5,000) square feet of land for offices, ramp, Aircraft parking,
auto parking and green space.

(2) Operate the service in a minimum of five hundred (500) square feet of office space and provide
a customer lounge, public telephones, and restrooms and two thousand five hundred (2,500) feet
of ventilated hangar space on the Airport.

(3) Employ and have on duty at least two (2) qualified Employees that have current required
certificate, licenses, and ratings.

(4) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days
per week.

Specialized Flying Services
SASOs engaging in Specialized Flying Services shall:

(1) Lease not less than five thousand (5,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft parking,
auto parking and green space.

(2) Operate the service from a minimum of five hundred (500) square feet of office space on the
Airport and provide a customer lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.

(3) Employ and make available at least one (1) employee who holds a current FAA commercial
pilot certificate and medical certificate with ratings appropriate for the operator’s Aircratft.

(4) Provide contact information (i.e. telephone, pager, etc.) and have services available within four
(4) hours of request, and keep the premises open eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per week.

(5) Own or lease at least one (1) airworthy Aircraft.

30

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



SECTION 6 FLYING CLUBS

6.1 Requirements

The Port District has the right to require a Flying Club to furnish documents such as insurance
policies, Club by-laws, meeting minutes and notifications, and a current list of members to ensure
that the Club remains a non-commercial and non-profit organization. Each Flying Club shall be
required to provide the Port District with indemnification and insurance at the limits and types
determined by the Port District.

6.1.1 No member (owner) of a Flying Club shall receive compensation for services provided for
such Flying Club or its members (owners) unless such member is an authorized
Commercial Operator with the Port District.

6.1.2  Flying Club Member’s Aircraft shall not be used by non-members.

6.1.3 No member (owner) shall use Flying Club Aircraft in exchange for compensation.

6.1.4 Flying Club members (owners) shall file and keep current with the Department a complete
membership (owner) list and the investment share held by each member.

31

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



SECTION 7 EXHIBITS

Type of Business

FBO
Flight Training

Airframe & Power Plant
Mechanic

Air Charter or Taxi
Aircraft Rental
Avionics and Maintenance
Community Storage Hangar
Aircraft Sales
Aircraft Restoration
Specialized Flying Services

Flying Club

All structures/All businesses

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

General/Airport
Liability

Amount shown is
for combined
single limit
bodily injury and
property damage
for each
occurrence.

$5,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000

Vehicular
Liability

Amount
shown is for
combined
single limit
bodily injury
and property
damage for
each
occurrence.

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000

Hangar
Keepers

$2,000,000
$250,000
$1,000,000

$1,000,000
$250,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$250,000

Aircraft

Liability
Including
Passengers

Amount
shown is for
combined
single limit
bodily injury
and property
damage
for each
occurrence.

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000

Full replacement value insurance required.

Amount Shown is for each occurrence.

Environmental
Liability

Amount shown
is for combined
single limit
bodily injury

and property
damage for each
occurrence.

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

Insurance policies shall name the Waukegan Port District as additional insured in the manner specified by

the Department. The Waukegan Port District shall have the right to modify and/or change the foregoing

insurance requirements from time to time. Certificates of Insurance shall be provided to the Waukegan Port

District for each required policy.

4906-8465-1102, v. 1

32



PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF 2025

APPROVED:

, Chairman

Avye Nay Abstain

ROLL CALL:

Ayes:
Nays:

Abstain

33

4906-8465-1102, v. 1



WAUKEGAN PORT DISTRICT RESOLUTION

2025-R-16

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AIRSHOW AGREEMENT WITH WAUKEGAN
REGIONAL AIRSHOW

WHEREAS, the Waukegan Port District (“District”) is a political subdivision, body politic,
and municipal corporation established in accordance with the Waukegan Port District Act, 70 ILCS
1865/1, et seq. (“Act’); and

WHEREAS, the District owns and operates the Waukegan National Airport, a public facility
(“Airport”); and

WHEREAS, Section 4.15 and Section 4.7 of the Act authorize the District to make and enter
into contracts for the use of the Airport, any Airport facility, or any Airport land; and

WHEREAS, Waukegan Regional Airshow, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“WRA”),
desires to use the Airport to conduct an airshow and aviation event open to the public during the
period commencing on September 6, 2025, and terminating on September 7, 2025 (“Airshow”); and

WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into an agreement with WRA to permit WRA to use
the Airport for the purposes of conducting the Airshow (“Airshow Agreement), in accordance with
the terms set forth in the Airshow Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Waukegan Port District Board (“Beard”) has determined that it is in the best
interest of the District to enter into the Airshow Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Waukegan Port District Board, Lake
County, Illinois, as follows:

SECTION 1: RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into, and made a part of,
this Resolution as findings of the Board.

SECTION 2: APPROVAL OF AIRSHOW AGREEMENT. The Board hereby approves the
Airshow Agreement in substantially the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, and in a final
form approved by the Chairman and the District Counsel.

SECTION 3: AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE AIRSHOWAGREEMENT. The Board
hereby authorizes and directs the Chairman to execute, on behalf of the District, the final Airshow
Agreement upon receipt by the Chairman of at least one original copy of the Airshow Agreement
executed by WRA; provided, however, that if the executed copy of the Airshow Agreement is not
received by the Chairman within 60 days after the effective date of this Resolution, then this
authority to execute will, at the option of the Board, be null and void.

4924-8936-8670, v. 1



SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution will be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and approval according to law.

PASSED this  day of , 2025.

APPROVED this  day of , 2025.

VOTE: AYES = NAYS  ABSENT
Chair

4924-8936-8670, v. 1



EXHIBIT A

AIRSHOW AGREEMENT

4924-8936-8670, v. 1



Agreement to Conduct an Airshow and Aviation Event at
Waukegan National Airport

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) between the Waukegan Port District, a body
politic and corporate (“District”)”, owner and operator of the Waukegan National Airport
(“Airport”) and Waukegan Regional Airshow, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation

(M WRAH) .

WHEREAS, WRA desires to conduct a civic, educational, and community
development public airshow and aviation event (“Event”) at the Airport; and

WHEREAS, the District and the WRA desire to clarify the arm’s length relationship
between the District and WRA, and to define the basis and extent of license being granted
to WRA for use of the Airport for the Event; and

WHEREAS, the District recognizes the charitable purposes and the positive nature
of the Event;

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of agreements set forth in this
Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which are mutually acknowledged, and pursuant
to the District’s statutory powers, the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant of License. The District hereby grants to WRA a license for the non-exclusive
use of the Airport from September 6 to 8, 2025 (“Airshow Dates”) to conduct the
Event, including set up and clean up, subject to the terms of this Agreement. WRA
will pay $10.00 dollars to the District. WRA may not impede or interrupt access of
any of the District’s tenants at the Airport to their respective leaseholds. Use of any
property leased by WRA is subject to the District’s approval.

2. Obligations of the District.

A. Donation of Labor. The District may, but is not obligated to, donate such
labor for the Event from existing District staff as may be deemed by the
District not to be detrimental to the day-to-day operation and maintenance of
the Airport. This may include such portions of time of the general manager of
the Airport (“Airport Manager”) for the production of the Event. The
Airport Manager will function as the Airport Manager for the District
concurrent with the performance of his duties for WRA for the Event. The
Airport Manager is charged with separately identifying to third-parties his
capacity when acting as the agent for WRA. The Airport Manager is
responsible for issuing all required Notices to Airmen (NOTAMS) on behalf of
the Airport and shall be the prime contact for the Air Traffic Control Tower,
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Flight Standards District Office
(FSDO), and may serve as the contact for requesting United States Military
support for the Event.

4920-6024-4318, v. 1



3. Obligations of WRA.

A. Maintenance and Repair of Premises. After the conclusion of the Event, WRA

must restore the Airport and all the facilities therein to a condition equal to
or better than the Airport’s condition prior to the Event, including cleanliness
and notwithstanding normal wear and tear. WRA must repair any damage to
any portion of the Airport caused by or due to the Event.

B. Donation of Excess Proceeds. Proceeds from the Event received by WRA in

excess of WRA’s costs for conducting the Event will be donated to Civil Air
Patrol Group 22, Lake County Sheriff's Auxiliary, Navy Sea Cadets - Lake
County, Army ROTC, Navy ROTC, or other similar charitable organizations.

C. Insurance. WRA must obtain and maintain continuously in effect at all times
during this Agreement, at its sole cost, comprehensive general liability
insurance with a carrier or carriers licensed to do business in the State of
[llinois and satisfactory to District with coverage minimum limits of
$10,000,000, combined single limit of liability with respect to any and all of
its activities, air show acts, and services provided on the Airport, including,
but not limited to, workers compensation coverage for WRA'S employees, if
any. The policy of insurance required by this section must name the
“Waukegan Port District” as an additional insured. The policy of insurance
maintained by WRA must be obtained through a broker independent of the
District's insurance broker of record. WRA must furnish the District with a
certificate of insurance, not less than 30 days prior to the Event, said
certification to be maintained by WRA, evidencing the payment of the
applicable premium and that such insurance is in full force and effect. WRA
must not allow or cause its insurance coverage to lapse or be withdrawn.
WRA will require its insurer to give immediate written notice to the District
of the Event of a claim, lapse or withdrawal of coverage.

D. Required Services.

4920-6024-4318, v. 1

i.

ii.

WRA must provide, at its sole cost, all public safety services as may
reasonably be required for the Event, including police, fire, rescue,
emergency medical, and all support public works services.

WRA must provide for all public health services as may reasonably be
required for the Event, including, without limitation, adequate rest
room facilities, shelters, tents, trash receptacles and trash removal, as
well as all required permits. Restore premises to a condition
substantially equivalent to the Event condition of the Airport prior to
the vent.



iii. WRA must provide all crowd control barriers, including, without
limitation, required airshow crowd line barriers, ingress and egress
routes and signage and barriers to separate areas of the Airport not
accessible to the public, such as the Signature Flight Support apron
and other private hangars.

E. Accommodation of Other Aircraft WRA must make every effort to
accommodate previously arranged arriving or departing aircraft on flight
plans during the Event. The Airport Manager will inform all tenants of the
Airport in writing at least two weeks prior to Airshow Dates.

F. Licenses, Certificates, and Permits. WRA must obtain all required licenses,
certificates, and permits, including but not limited to the required FAA
airspace waivers and any and all State and local permits.

G. Standards. WRA must ensure all phases of the Event are in accordance with
the standard levels of safety and public good as normally provided at publicly
held airshow or aviation events. Such standards include the health and safety
standards of all goods and services provided by the performers, service
providers and vendors of the Event, including obtaining proof of liability
insurance as required by the District, with a limit of liability not less than
$1,000,000.00 and naming the “Waukegan Port District” as an additional
insured. WRA may allow certain non-paid performers to perform at the
Event. In such a case WRA may exercise its discretion to waive the
requirement of naming the District as additional insured, provided that
either: (i) the non-paid performer provides to WRA satisfactory evidence of
liability insurance of at least $5,000,000.00; (ii) or the non-paid performer
obtains a primary aircraft policy with a limit of not less than $1,000,000.00
combined single limit, with the “Waukegan Port District” named as an
additional insured.

H. Capacity of Airport Manager. In connection with the performance of Airport
Manager’s duties for WRA, the Airport Manager will inform third parties and
the public generally that he is not acting in his official capacity as Airport
Manager and that he is not acting as the agent for the District in any matter
pertaining to the activities of WRA. Writings will clearly indicate by express
language that WRA is not incurring any costs or obligations on behalf of the
District. WRA shall have no authority to obtain any service or employ any
person on behalf of, or as an agent of, the District for any purpose.

[. Qualification in Illinois. WRA must provide to the District a Certificate of
Good Standing from the Illinois Secretary of State for WAUKEGAN REGIONAL
AIRSHOW, a not for profit corporation, prior to August 31, 2025. In ordering
any goods or services for the Event, WRA must place such orders clearly in
WRA's name and may not order any goods or services on behalf of the

4920-6024-4318, v. 1



District. WRA must use an address other than those of the District for billing
and solicitation purposes.

J. Indemnification. WRA agrees to and does indemnify, hold harmless, and
defend the District, its officers, directors, employees, and agents, from and
against any and all loss, damage, liability, claims, demands, costs, charges,
expenses, and causes of action of any kind which the District may incur,
sustain, or be subjected to on account of loss or damage to property and loss
thereof, or for bodily injury to, or death of, any persons (including, but not
limited to, property, employees, customers, subcontractors, agents, and
invitees of each party hereto) arising out of or in any way connected with
WRA and its activities, arising from any cause whatsoever, except as may be
caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the District or its
officers, directors, employees, agents, or representatives. Further, WRA will
indemnify, hold harmless and defend the District, its officers, directors,
employees and agents from and against any and all loss, damages, claims,
remedial investigations, fees for consulting experts, attorneys fees, clean-up
expenses, fines and penalties, arising from or related to any environmental
damage, pollution, contamination, waste, discharge, or spill which is caused
in whole or in part by any act or omission arising from WRA'S activities, use
or possession of the Airport.

K. Financial Accounting. WRA must provide the District with a detailed financial
accounting of expenses, disbursements and proceeds of the Event not later
than December 1, 2025.

4. General Provisions.

A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between
the District and WRA. The District has no other obligations other than those
specifically recited herein.

B. Prevailing Party. In the event of a judicial proceeding brought by one party of
this Agreement against the other on account of the negotiation, execution,
performance, or breach of, or default under, this Agreement, the prevailing
party in the judicial proceeding will be entitled to reimbursement from the
unsuccessful party of all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’
fees, incurred in connection with the judicial proceeding.

C. Amendments and Modifications. No amendment to this Agreement will be
effective unless and until the amendment is in writing, properly approved in
accordance with applicable procedures, and executed by all parties.

D. Third Party Beneficiary. The provisions of this Agreement are and will be for
the benefit of the District and WRA only and are not for the benefit of any
third party, and, accordingly, no third party will have the right to enforce the

4

4920-6024-4318, v. 1



provisions of this Agreement. The District will not be liable to any vendor or
other third party for any agreements made by WRA, purportedly on behalf of
the District, without the knowledge and approval of the District’s Board.

E. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts,
each of which is deemed to be an original but all of which will constitute one
and the same instrument. Facsimile or electronic counterpart copies of this
Agreement will be considered for all purposes, including delivery, as
originals.

F. Governing Laws. This Agreement will be interpreted according to the
internal laws, but not the conflict of laws rules, of the State of Illinois.

G. Venue. Exclusive jurisdiction with regard to the any actions or proceedings
arising from, relating to, or in connection with this Agreement will be in the
Illinois circuit court for Lake County, Illinois, or, where applicable, in the
federal court for the Northern District of Illinois.

H. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the District will
have the right, in its sole and absolute discretion, to determine if (i) the
remainder of the provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect and will in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated; or (ii) the
entire Agreement is invalid, void, and unenforceable.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

4920-6024-4318, v. 1



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be legally
executed in duplicate this day of , 2025.

WAUKEGAN PORT DISTRICT,
a body politic and corporate,

BY:
Chairman

WAUKEGAN REGIONAL AIRSHOW
an Illinois not for profit corporation,

BY:
Thomas J. Coogan, President

4920-6024-4318, v. 1



Harbor General Manager
Report




MARINA

WAUKEGAN HARBOR ane
FINANCIALS

MONTHLY
FINANCIAL
REPORT
55 S Harbor PI
Waukegan, IL 60085
PREPARED FOR: T
Waukegan Port District Board
HARBOR' MARINA
PREPARED BY:

Rebecca Remshak




Monthly Marina Owner Report

CONTACT INFORMATION

MARINA MANAGER

Joe Seidelmann

847-244-3133
iseldelmann@waukeganport.com

MARINAACCOUNTANT
Rebecca Remshak
414-550-9336
rremshak@f3marina.com

DIRECTOR OF MARINA OPERATIONS
Hunter Spitler

414-299-9291
hspitler@f3marina.com

DIRECTOR OF MARINA ACCOUNTING
Adam Buerger

414-249-2169
abuerger@f3marina.com

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER
Tricia Burlage

414-249-2139
trbulage@founders3.com

MARKETING SPECIALIST
Dani Broberg
414-249-2157
dbroberg@founders3.com

PREPARED BY F3 MARINA

13400 Bishops Lane Suite 190, Brookfield, WI 53005 | 414.271.1111

v2023.01

www.f3marina.com | 2

F3

MARINA

1\ ACCREDITED
MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION



mailto:jseldelmann@waukeganport.com
mailto:rremshak@f3marina.com
mailto:hspitler@f3marina.com
mailto:abuerger@f3marina.com
mailto:trbulage@founders3.com
mailto:dbroberg@founders3.com

Monthly Marina Owner Report

MARINA
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
PROPERTY GOALS
Goal Completion
Repair and adjustment of South Pier dock system In progress
Repair of wall and siding on Harbor control building In progress
Renovation of ship store In progress
Renovation of public restrooms Complete
PREPARED BY F3 MARINA

[ANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION®

13400 Bishops Lane Suite 190, Brookfield, WI 53005 | 414.271.1111 | www.f3marina.com | 3
v2023.01



Monthly Marina Owner Report

OCCUPANCY

Occupancy %

DELINQUENCIES

Tenant

70.00%

60.00%

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%

Big Lake Marine

Dockside Dogs

TOTAL DELINQUENCIES:

Amount
$52,000

$16,992.44

$68,992.44

PREPARED BY F3 MARINA

13400 Bishops Lane Suite 190, Brookfield, Wl 53005 | 414.271.1111 | www.f3marina.com | 4

v2023.01

Jan Feb

Mar Apr
B Occupancy-2025  40.00% 45.00% 50.00% 53.00%

MARINA

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
56.00% | 60.00% 0.00% @ 0.00% & 0.00% @ 0.00% @ 0.00% 0.00%

Description

Tenant provided QB files and backup. Reviewing and matching to our
system to determine final balances. Will have resolution prior to board
meeting. Amount owed is offset by work completed in 2022 and tenant
shows a small balance owed by port. Will provide update at meeting.
Eviction court date scheduled for July 21 at 1pm. Chairman will update on
possibility of special meeting to discuss new tenant. RFP responses being
reviewed. 3 responses prior to deadline were submitted.

CCREDITED
= MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION®



Monthly Marina Owner Report

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000

$50,000

$(50,000)
$(100,000)

$(150,000) .
Gross Profit

$212,028
$254,321
$(42,293)

Revenue
$254,668
$310,431
$(55,763)

Expenses
$121,805
$116,624
$(5,181)

W Actual
M Budgeted

m Variance

NET OPERATING INCOME

$300,000
$250,000
$200,000

$150,000

o
= $100,000

$50,000
s_
$(50,000)

$(100,000)
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

$(40,235) | $(43,871) = $(51,759) $74,534 $202,962
$(82,067) | $(76,317) | $(81,845) | $108,058 $229,966
$(48,529) | $(41,102) = $(48,687) $77,848 $219,009

@@ 2025 Actual $90,224
$137,697

$148,726

@ 7025 Budget
@ 2024 Actual

PREPARED BY F3 MARINA

13400 Bishops Lane Suite 190, Brookfield, WI 53005 | 414.271.1111 |
v2023.01

NOI

S_ . . — .

$90,224
$137,697
$(47,474)

Jul

$103,065

Aug

$117,606

www.f3marina.com | 5

| I
Non-OpEx
$(30,577)

$(95,844)
$65,268

Sep Oct

$144,155

$131,208 $252,524

MARINA

Net Income
$59,647
$41,853
$17,794

$(46,373)

ACCREDITED
[ANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION®



Monthly Marina Owner Report F 3

MARINA
MONTHLY VARIANCES

Income Description Variance
Fuel-Gas Inclement weather, especially on weekends this season has slowed traffic. -9,534.47
Fuel-Diesel Same as regular fuel. Inclement weather has slowed business. -4,741.21
Gift Shop Sales Less weekend traffic due to slow season start. -1,233.56
Launch Fee Poor weekend weather and fishing has impacted number of launches. -11,500
Slip Fee Poor weather has delayed the boating season and those waiting to secure -36,136.94

slips.

TOTAL INCOME VARIANCE: ($55,762.99) - 82%

Operating Expenses Description Variance

Seasonal Herbicide treatment cost. Originally planned to be done in house,  6,088.35
Dock Maint (Materials) but changed due to increased cost of replacement equipment.

TOTAL OPERATING VARIANCE:  $5,180.78 - 104.4%

NET OPERATING INCOME (NOI) VARIANCE: ($47,473.56) - 65.5%
NET OPERATING INCOME (NOI) YTD VARIANCE: $39,423.30-114.4%

Non-Operating Expenses Description Variance
Other Expense Lake County Collector 2,086.07
Tax on leaseholds from previous years being sought out from tenant no
longer on property.
TOTAL NON-OPERATING VARIANCE: ($65,267.65) -
31.9%

TOTAL NET INCOME/(LOSS) MONTHLY VARIANCE: $17,794.09 - 142.5%

PREPARED BY F3 MARINA

13400 Bishops Lane Suite 190, Brookfield, WI 53005 | 414.271.1111 | www.f3marina.com | 6
v2023.01

CCREDITED
ANAGEMENT
'RGANIZATION



Financial Appendix




Financial Appendix

Airport



Waukegan National Airport
Budget vs. Actuals: FY2025 Budget - FY25 P&L

Current Month Year-To-Date
June 30, 2025 June 30, 2025 2025
% of % of Annual
Actual Budget Budget Last Year % Change Actual Budget Budget Last Year % Change Budget
Net Operating Revenue
Revenue
9210-4060 AV Gas Flowage 1,664 758 220% 966 72% 6,125 4,564 134% 5,813 5% 12,000
9210-4070 Jet Gas Flowage 49,624 53,948 92% 38,546 29% 262,342 253,379 104% 184,347 42% 525,000
9210-4080 Lease Revenues 81,338 74,242 110% 73,977 10% 686,861 646,719 106% 720,259 -5% 1,255,000
9210-4090 Percentage of Gross Sales 7,484 7,500 100% 16,264 -54% 49,385 45,000 110% 44,649 1% 90,000
9210-4100 Fuel Permits 0 0 0 3,000 3,000 100% 3,000 0% 6,000
9210-4180 Misc Income 0 445 0% 720 -100% 0 833 0% 1,348 -100% 108,554
Total Revenue 140,110 136,893 102% 130,473 7% 1,007,713 953,495 106% 959,416 5% 1,996,554
Expenditures
9210-6290 Real Estate Taxes 7,527 9,000 84% 0 7,527 9,000 84% 4,606 63% 9,000
9210-6400 Office Supplies 171 583 29% -7 -2543% 1,960 3,498 56% 2,452 -20% 7,000
9210-6420 Postage Expense 0 0 16 -100% 0 0 16 -100% 0
9210-6650 Business Development 19 750 3% 1,508 -99% 4,375 4,500 97% 5,074 -14% 9,000
9210-6651 Membership Dues 1 500 0% 180 -99% 2,386 3,000 80% 3,400 -30% 6,000
9210-6670 Uniforms 0 500 0% -106 -100% 1,601 3,000 53% 932 2% 6,000
9210-6720 Utilities 5,256 6,471 81% 4,085 29% 37,729 38,826 97% 30,297 25% 77,652
9210-6740 Advertising 450 417 108% 450 0% 900 2,502 36% 900 0% 5,004
9210-6791 Fees 117 250 47% 70 67% 796 1,500 53% 265 200% 3,000
Insurance
9210-6320 General Liability Insurance 0 0 0 26,987 28,104 96% 26,987 0% 28,104
9210-6321 Auto Insurance 0 0 0 9,745 8,796 111% 8,444 15% 8,796
9210-6322 Cyber Liability Insurance 0 0 0 1,216 1,260 97% 1,216 0% 1,260
9210-6323 Directors and Officers Insurance 0 0 0 7,459 3,900 191% 3,744 99% 3,900
9210-6324 Public Officials Insurance 0 0 0 0 5,352 0% 5,138 -100% 5,352
9210-6325 Crime Insurance 0 0 0 546 576 95% 546 0% 576
9210-6326 Pollution Liability Insurance 0 0 0 10,624 10,624 100% 10,624 0% 10,624
9210-6327 Building Insurance 0 0 0 19,973 23,352 86% 11,214 78% 23,352
Total Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 76,550 81,964 8 67,913 13% 81,964
Maintenance Accounts
9210-6460 Vehicle Operation & Maintenance 4,125 8,333 50% 16,635 -75% 43,770 49,998 88% 59,258 -26% 100,000
9210-6540 Airfield Maintenance -5,790 7,500 -17% -184 3047% 39,063 45,000 87% 34,934 12% 90,000
9210-6600 Building Maintenance 981 3,083 32% 2,613 -62% 12,038 18,498 65% 17,037 -29% 37,000
Total Maintenance Accounts -684 18,916 0 19,064 -104% 94,871 113,496 -100% 111,229 -15% 227,000
Outside Service Accounts
9210-6200 Outside Service-Legal 1,856 16,194 1% 7,927 -17% 11,904 61,184 19% 29,949 -60% 100,000
9210-6240 Outside Services-Other 13,390 13,322 101% 6,965 92% 47,548 59,112 80% 30,905 54% 124,000
9210-6241 Audits 7,544 7,544 100% 0 19,104 19,104 100% 0 22,008
9210-6242 Engineering Services 2,152 2,083 103% 1,608 34% 6,357 12,502 51% 2,816 126% 25,000
9210-6245 Outside Services-FBO Analyses 5,750 0 0 5,750 0 0 0
9210-6260 Outside Services- F3 Management 6,500 6,500 100% 6,500 0% 39,000 39,000 100% 39,037 0% 78,000
9210-6270 Outside Services- F3 Payroll 62,855 70,833 89% 58,274 8% 388,243 424,998 91% 367,896 6% 850,000
9210-6275 Outside Services - Airport Security 1,250 1,250 100% 0 7,500 7,500 100% 0 15,000
9210-6280 Outside Services- IT 1,262 3,083 41% 1,526 -17% 14,203 18,498 77% 13,395 6% 37,000
Total Outside Service Accounts 102,559 120,809 85% 82,799 24% 539,608 641,898 84% 483,998 11% 1,251,008
Total Expenditures 115,416 158,196 73% 108,059 7% 768,303 903,184 85% 711,082 8% 1,682,628
Net Operating Revenue 24,694 -21,303 -116% 22,414 10% 239,410 50,311 476% 248,334 -4% 313,926
Other Income
9210-4110 Interest Earned 8,379 3,549 236% 7,815 7% 48,084 21,453 224% 47,243 2% 45,000
9210-8510 Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Other Income 8,379 3,549 236% 7,815 48,084 21,453 T 477243 T 45,000
Other Expenditures
9210-6820 Interest Expense (NBH) 0 0 0 10,117 9,162 110% 10,117 0% 18,324
2510-0000 NBH Bond 23,371 24,324 96% 23,371 0% 23,371 24,324 96% 23,371 0% 48,648
9210-6930 Capital Spending-UGN Funded 6,680 47,881 14% 10,765 -38% 106,609 287,286 37% 320,815 -67% 574,578
Total Other Expenditures 30,052 72,205 42% 34,136 140,097 320,772 354,303 641,550
Net Other Income -21,673 -68,656 32% -26,321 -92,013 -299,319 -307,060 -596,550
Total 3,021 -89,959 -3% -3,907 147,397 -249,008 -58,726 -282,624
Recap of Month Activity by Type
Total Income 140,110 136,893 102% 130,473 7% 1,007,713 953,495 106% 959,416 5% 1,996,554
Total Expenses 115,416 158,196 73% 108,059 7% 768,303 903,184 85% 711,082 8% 1,682,628
Net Operating Income (Loss) 24,694 -21,303 -116% 22,414 10% 239,410 50,311 476% 248,334 -4% 313,926
Net Other Income -21,673 -68,656 32% -26,321 -18% -92,013 -299,319 31% -307,060 -70% -596,550

Total Month Activity 3,021 -89,959 -3% -3,907 -T77% 147,397 -249,008 -59% -58,726 -35T% -282,624




Financial Appendix

Customs




Net Operating Income

Income
9210-4110 Interest Earned
9210-4217 Custom Service for Contract Labor - Prepaid
9210-4220 Customs Service for Contract Labor Overtime

9210-4250 International Garbage Fee
Total Income

Expenses
9210-6100 Contract Labor Customs Building
9210-6150 Contract Labor Customs Building - Overtime
9210-6240 Outside Services
9210-6280 Outside Services - Information Technology
9210-6400 Office supplies
9210-6600 Building maintenance
9210-6700 Customs Service Expense - Garbage Fee
9210-6720 Utilities

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

Non Operating Income
9210-4775 U.S. Customs Building Rent Revenue

Total Non-Operating Income

Debt Obligations
2519-0000 Capital One Bond Principal
9210-6820 Interest Expense

Total Debt Obligation

Capital Budget
9210-6930 Capital Budget
Total Capital Budget

Recap of Month Activity by Type
Total Income

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income (Loss)

Plus WPDCBSA US Customs Building
Less debt principal and interest payments
Less capital budget

Total Month Activity

Current Month

Waukegan National Airport Customs
Budget vs. Actuals: 2024 Budget - FY24 P&L

Year-To-Date

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2025 2025

Annual

Actual Budget % of Budget Last Year % Change Actual Budget % of Budget Last Year % Change Budget
228 125 121 88% 979 750 792 -100% 1,500
0 0 0 180,429 180,000 100% 135,200 33% 360,000
650 2,625 25% 2,750 -76% 22,750 15,750 144% 11,000 107% 31,500
1,665 2,800 59% 2,220 -25% 13,505 16,800 80% 12,025 12% 33,600
$ 2,543 § 5,550 46% $ 5,091 -50% $ 217,663 $ 213,300 102% $ 159,017 37% $ 426,600
0 0 0 172,517 204,655 84% 171,478 1% 272,873
1,142 2,625 44% 4,120 72% 13,802 15,750 88% 10,746 28% 31,500
758 1,351 56% 779 3% 9,731 8,106 120% 5,886 65% 16,216
0 364 0% 0 39,740 37,820 105% 6,567 505% 40,000
0 50 0% 0 0 300 0% 0 600
280 463 60% 280 0% 3,995 2,778 144% 2,240 78% 5,550
1,640 2,800 59% 1,490 10% 11,480 16,800 68% 11,180 3% 33,600
509 1,137 45% 540 6% 7,385 6,822 108% 6,563 13% 13,650
$ 4329 $ 8,790 49% $ 7,209 -40% $ 258,652 $ 293,031 88% $ 214,660 20% 413,989
-$ 1,786 -$ 3,240 55% -$ 2,117 90% -$ 40,988 -$ 79,731 51% -$ 55,643 90% 12,611
7,149 7,149 100% 7,149 0% 71,939 71,940 100% 71,939 0% 139,822
$ 7149 § 7,149 100% $ 7,149 0% $ 71,939 $ 71,940 100% $ 71,939 0% $ 139,822
0 0 37,098 -100% 37,098 -100% 77,745
28,389 27,314 104% 0 28,389 27,314 104% 29,088 2% 54,627
28,389 27,314 104% 37,098 -23% 28,389 27,314 104% 66,186 57% 132,372
0 0 0 6,450 6,450 100% 0 6,450
0 0 0 6,450 6,450 100% 0 6,450
2,543 5,550 46% 5,091 -50% 217,663 213,300 102% 159,017 37% 426,600
4,329 8,790 49% 7,209 -40% 258,652 293,031 88% 214,660 20% 413,989
-1,786 -3,240 55% 2,117 -16% -40,988 79,731 51% -55,643 -26% 12,611
7,149 7,149 100% 7,149 0% 71,939 71,940 100% 71,939 0% 139,822
-28,389 27,314 104% -37,098 -23% -28,389 27,314 104% 66,186 -57% 132,372
0 0 0 -6,450 -6,450 100% 0 6,450
23,025 23,405 98% -32,066 -28% -3,888 -41,555 9% -49,890 92% 13,611




Financial Appendix
Harbor




Waukegan Port District

Harbor Financials
June 2025

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

401.20 - Fuel- Gas
401.21 - Discounts Gas
401.20 - Fuel- Gas - Other
Total 401.20 - Fuel- Gas
402.20 - Fuel-Diesel
402.21 - Discount Diesel
402.20 - Fuel-Diesel - Other
Total 402.20 - Fuel-Diesel
403.20 - Gift Shop Sales
404.20 - Vending Sales
405.20 - Ice Sales
406.20 - Beverage Sales
406.21 - HCB Coffee
406.20 - Beverage Sales - Other
Total 406.20 - Beverage Sales
408.20 - Lease Revenues
408.21 - Daily Event Fees (Bldg)
409.20 - Percentage of Gross Sales
408.20 - Lease Revenues - Other
Total 408.20 - Lease Revenues
410.20 - Misc. Income
411.20 - Interest Earned
413.20 - Slip Fee Seasonal Income
419.20 - Guest Slip Fees
421.23 - Launch Fees

421.20 - Launch Fees- Boater Seasonal

421.21 - Daily Launch Tokens

421.23 - Launch Fees - Other
Total 421.23 - Launch Fees
424.20 - Permit Fees

Total Income

Cost of Goods Sold

500.20 - Cost of Goods Sold-Ship Store
503.20 - COGS-Gift Shop
504.20 - COGS-Vending
505.20 - COGS-Ice
506.20 - COGS-Beverages

510.20 -
500.20 -

Shipping, Handling and Service
Cost of Goods Sold-Ship Store - Other

Total 500.20 - Cost of Goods Sold-Ship Store

602.20 - Cost of Goods Sold- Gas

602.21 - Cost of Goods Sold-Diesel

Jun 25 Budget Jun 24 YTD LY YTD Budget
-307.21 0.00 -378.59 -571.69 -673.96 0.00
45,465.53 55,000.00 53,569.04 80,420.75 95,095.62 102,000.00
45,158.32 55,000.00 53,190.45 79,849.06 94,421.66 102,000.00
0.00 0.00 -8.27 -12.82 -19.81 0.00
10,258.79 15,000.00 16,081.61 31,934.97 40,392.69 36,000.00
10,258.79 15,000.00 16,073.34 31,922.15 40,372.88 36,000.00
966.44 2,200.00 1,477.92 1,701.63 2,800.79 3,800.00
76.00 0.00 0.00 94.00 0.00 0.00
741.00 0.00 357.00 903.00 507.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
223.00 0.00 232.00 0.00
223.00 0.00 0.00 232.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
39,687.74 37,907.05 39,488.96 296,471.27 296,188.85 308,150.61
39,687.74 37,907.05 39,488.96 296,471.27 296,188.85 308,150.61
0.00 62.50 50.00 -2,496.84 400.00 375.00
3,030.44 500.00 3,836.37 19,107.59 12,739.71 3,000.00
136,924.44 173,061.38 152,489.33 391,063.79 441,536.94 519,184.10
7,251.77 8,000.00 8,320.56 2,311.00 8,236.48 17,000.00
1,850.00 3,710.00 7,750.00 8,820.00
6,300.00 7,137.00 14,539.00 9,937.00
0.00 11,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00
8,150.00 11,500.00 10,847.00 22,289.00 18,757.00 20,000.00
2,200.00 7,200.00 700.00 4,300.00 9,200.00 9,300.00
254,667.94 310,430.93 285,418.65 861,183.40 925,275.55 1,018,809.71
1,108.58 1,760.00 963.44 996.61 2,477.78 3,040.00
32.27 0.00 38.90 0.00
357.84 192.78 458.64 273.78
78.41 0.00 82.27 0.00
169.83 0.00 207.64 324.81
-192.29 0.00 -192.29 0.00
1,554.64 1,760.00 1,156.22 1,591.77 3,076.37 3,040.00
33,699.60 44,000.00 42,180.29 57,413.57 74,633.34 81,600.00
7,385.55 10,350.00 9,160.16 21,546.59 28,058.75 24,840.00 Page 1 of 3



Total COGS

Gross Profit

Expense

614.20 -
624.20 -
626.20 -
627.20 -
628.20 -

Employee Appreciation

Outside Services

Outside Services-Management Fee
Outside Services- F3 Marina P/R

Outside Services- IT

628.21 - Software Subscriptions
628.20 - Outside Services- IT - Other

Total 628.20 - Outside Services- IT

632.20 -
640.20 -
641.20 -
642.20 -
64300 -
646.20 -
660.20 -

Outside Service - Property Ins
Office Supplies

Janitorial Supplies

Postage Expense

Meals and Entertainment
Vehicle Operation & Maint
Building & Grounds Maint.

660.21 - Security and Access Maintenance

660.25 - HVAC

660.30 - Tools

660.31 - Trash Removal
660.32 - Electrical Repairs
660.33 - Keys/Lock Repairs
660.34 - Roof Flashing
660.35 - Plumbing Repairs
660.36 - Signage

660.37 - Landscaping and Grounds

660.38 - Exterminating

660.39 - Access Maintenance

660.40 - Fire & Life Safety

660.42 - Dock Maint (Materials)

660.43 - Fuel Dock Maintenance

660.20 - Building & Grounds Maint. - Other

Total 660.20 - Building & Grounds Maint.

661.20

665.20 -

665.21

665.25 -
667.20 -
672.20 -

- Uniforms/ Small Equip-Harbor

Memb, Conf & Education

- Meals & Entertainment Harbor

Marina Events
Monthly - Yearly OSubscriptions
Utilities

672.30 - Electricity
672.40 - Water and Sewer

672.50 - Gas

672.60 - Internet

Total 672.20 - Utilities

674.20

- Advertising

Jun 25 Budget Jun 24 YTD LY YTD Budget
42,639.79 56,110.00 52,496.67 80,551.93 105,768.46 109,480.00
212,028.15 254,320.93 232,921.98 780,631.47 819,507.09 909,329.71
0.00 250.00 0.00 765.64 500.00
0.00 0.00 -6,000.00 0.00 35.00 2,000.00
6,500.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 39,000.00 39,000.00 39,000.00
64,252.47 65,714.91 51,553.34 294,543.15 229,142.35 358,089.66
254.87 342.87 3,558.00
2,614.86 2,687.00 2,113.45 14,876.72 27,548.03 18,248.00
2,869.73 2,687.00 2,113.45 15,219.59 31,106.03 18,248.00
12,350.37 11,446.93 0.00 61,768.52 103,513.76 75,787.72
683.34 625.00 396.44 4,994.23 2,363.90 3,750.00
778.68 1,000.00 2,237.53 5,843.85 4,297.71 6,000.00
0.00 200.00 22.80 319.00 102.53 1,000.00
0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 2,385.51 1,055.56
1,808.47 3,000.00 1,520.41 3,544.12 1,484.06 9,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 741.93 278.00 5,000.00
249.00 0.00 140.22 249.00 140.22 1,000.00
0.00 0.00 133.97 2,664.50 538.75 1,000.00
2,403.86 2,500.00 6,179.43 10,334.98 12,149.35 15,000.00
0.00 0.00 109.34 523.60 1,344.20 5,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 553.00 500.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
387.32 0.00 29.96 2,285.29 1,201.00 1,500.00
949.90 0.00 0.00 1,726.06 286.49 500.00
2,391.00 2,450.00 1,800.00 5,991.00 6,800.00 7,550.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,275.00 300.00
983.51 0.00 2,271.91
945.00 500.00 0.00 3,870.00 3,684.00 3,800.00
8,171.68 2,083.33 1,509.67 11,899.76 2,435.90 12,916.65
0.00 416.67 1,221.97 2,499.98
150.00 2,500.00 1,304.94 6,655.58 8,993.90 15,000.00
16,631.27 10,450.00 11,207.53 53,263.58 37,851.81 72,566.63
25.00 0.00 321.60 125.47 5,000.00
0.00 0.00 649.97 510.00 4,000.00
91.24 307.63
870.57 3,000.00 430.36 7,488.64 487.17 4,000.00
818.00 1,000.00 118.68 3,851.85 3,349.33 6,000.00
321.60
5,401.85 5,500.00 9,790.09 30,840.30 38,136.23 33,000.00
1,542.04 1,000.00 787.31 11,038.60 3,421.35 6,000.00
289.65 1,000.00 187.68 4,218.34 3,668.04 6,000.00
2,860.17 1,800.00 9,078.84 1,416.99 10,800.00
10,093.71 9,300.00 11,021.22 61,060.43 46,642.61 55,800.00
18.00 0.00 2,134.00 6,110.21 5,894.00 9,000.00

Page 2 of 3



676.20 - Promotions

679.20 - Credit Card Service Charge

679.21 - Payment Innovator Fees

679.20 - Credit Card Service Charge - Other

Total 679.20 - Credit Card Service Charge
680.20 - Cash Short/ Over
69810 - Bank Service Charges

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

638.20

682.20 -
692.20 -
852.20 -
853.20 -
854.20 -

- Depreciation Exp-H

Interest Expense
Capital Budget
Other Expense
Legal Expense

Audit Expenses

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

Jun 25 Budget Jun 24 YTD LY YTD Budget
37.86 1,000.00 447.10 1,852.41 560.00 2,957.64
2,666.60 -1,484.49 1,504.97 -3,395.14
1,142.67 200.00 1,851.17 4,356.63 2,838.24
3,809.27 200.00 366.68 5,861.60 -556.90
-25.74 -0.34 -30.44 13.65
192.38 179.62 529.41 658.09
121,804.62 116,623.84 49,248.82 567,919.96 477,295.57 674,955.21
90,223.53 137,697.09 183,673.16 212,711.51 342,211.52 234,374.50
0.00 73,193.13 73,193.13 0.00 439,158.78 439,158.78
14,822.00 14,822.00 16,273.57 109,026.95 100,582.25 88,932.00
0.00 0.00 4,172.00 11,934.68 3,084.85 185,000.00
2,086.07 0.00 35,354.68 2,086.07 35,354.00 0.00
1,900.25 5,829.34 -3,095.50 21,680.00 46,167.25 34,995.00
11,768.50 2,000.00 0.00 15,368.50 7,750.00 7,000.00
30,576.82 95,844.47 125,897.88 159,996.20 632,097.81 755,085.78
-30,576.82 -95,844.47 -125,897.88 -159,996.20 -632,097.80 -755,085.78
59,646.71 41,852.62 57,775.28 52,715.31 -289,886.28 -520,711.28

Page 3 of 3



End of Packet




	25.07.16  Meeting Minutes Final.pdf
	Call to Order
	Roll Call
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Approval of Remote Participation/Voting
	Chairman Remarks
	Public Comment – (3 minutes per person)
	Adjournment

	June 2025-F3Marina_ExecutiveSummary_Waukegan.pdf
	June
	2025
	MONTHLY
	FINANCIAL
	REPORT
	55 S Harbor Pl
	Waukegan, IL 60085
	PREPARED FOR:
	Waukegan Port District Board
	PREPARED BY:
	Rebecca Remshak

	Airport Exec Summary Period Ending June 30 2025 FINAL.pdf
	Accountant Comments

	Customs Exec Summary Period Ending June 30, 2025 FINAL.pdf
	Accountant Comments

	Airport  Customs Financials - June 2025 FINAL.pdf
	Customs Budget vs Actuals

	Airport  Customs Financials - June 2025 FINAL.pdf
	Customs Budget vs Actuals

	Airport Financials - June 2025 FINAL.pdf
	Airport Budget vs. Actuals

	WPD - Waukegan Regional Airshow Agreement (2025).pdf
	Agreement to Conduct an Airshow and Aviation Event at
	Waukegan National Airport

	25.08.20 Final Agenda.pdf
	Call to Order
	Roll Call
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Approval of Remote Participation/Voting
	Chairman Remarks
	Public Comment – (3 minutes per person)
	Adjournment

	Minimum Standards for Commercial Aeronautical Activities.pdf
	Section 1  PURPOSE OF MINIMUM STANDARDS
	Section 2  DEFINITIONS AND APPLICABILITY
	2.1 Definitions
	2.2 Application of Minimum Standards
	2.2.1 Except as otherwise provided for herein, all Entities conducting Commercial Aeronautical Activities at the Airport shall, as a condition of conducting such activities, meet or exceed the requirements of Sections 2 and 3 as well meet the Minimum ...
	2.2.2 These Minimum Standards shall not affect any Agreement entered into by the Port District prior to the effective date of these Minimum Standards, except as otherwise provided for in such Agreement, in which case these Minimum Standards shall appl...
	2.2.3 Whenever a SASO conducts multiple activities pursuant to one Lease, license, Permit or Agreement with the Port District, and the Minimum Standards for one of the Commercial Operator’s activities are inconsistent with the Minimum Standards for an...

	2.3 Activities Not Covered by Minimum Standards
	2.4 Variance or Exemption
	2.4.1 The Port District may approve variances to these Minimum Standards when a specific clause,  section, or provision does not seem justified in a particular case because of special conditions and unique circumstances.
	2.4.2 Any variance or exception approved by the Port District shall apply only to the special conditions or unique circumstances of the particular case under which the variance or exemption is granted and shall not serve to amend, modify, or alter the...
	2.4.3 When a specific product, service, or facility is not currently being provided at the Airport, the Port District may enter into an Agreement with an FBO or SASO with terms and conditions that are less than those outlined in these Minimum Standard...

	2.5 Conflicting Standards

	Section 3  BUSINESS OPERATIONS
	3.1 Employee Conduct and Customer Service Emphasis
	3.2 Management Control and Supervision
	3.3 Personnel Training and Certification
	3.4 Corporate Identification Requirement
	3.4.1 Personnel
	3.4.2 Buildings, Vehicles, and Equipment


	Section 4  MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR FIXED BASE OPERATORS
	4.1 Required Aeronautical Activities
	4.1.1 An FBO is a full service Commercial Operator who is authorized to engage in the sale of products, services, and facilities to Aircraft operators and is required to provide the following services at a minimum:
	4.1.2 FBOs may also provide optional services as approved by the Port District, which may include, but are not limited to: Flight Training, Aircraft Rental, Aircraft Sales, Air Charter or Air Taxi, Aircraft Management Operations, Airframe and Power Pl...
	4.1.3 Only FBOs shall be permitted to provide commercial Aircraft Fueling services and operate retail Aircraft Fueling facilities at the Airport.
	4.1.4 FBOs may subcontract or use third-party operators to provide any of the required FBO services, or optional services, with the exception of Aircraft Fueling and Aircraft Line Services, which services must be provided directly by FBO and its Emplo...
	4.1.5 Each FBO shall conduct its business and activities on and from the Leased Premises in a safe and professional manner consistent with the degree of care and skill exercised by experienced FBOs providing comparable products, services, and activiti...

	4.2 Aircraft Design Group Serviceability
	4.3 Leased Premises Size
	4.3.1 Minimum Leased Premises Requirements
	4.3.2 Buildings and FBO Leaseholds
	4.3.3 Vehicle Parking
	4.3.4 Aircraft Parking
	4.3.5 Hours of Operation

	4.4 Staffing and Employee Qualifications
	4.4.1 Staffing
	4.4.2 Employee Qualifications

	4.5 Insurance Requirements
	4.6 Required FBO Services
	4.7 Optional FBO Services

	Section 5  MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR SPECIALIZED AVIATION SERVICE OPERATIONS (SASO)
	5.1 General Requirements
	5.1.1 Compliance
	5.1.2 Leased Space Requirement
	5.1.3 Responsible Personnel
	5.1.4. Insurance Requirements

	5.2 Flight Training
	5.3 Airframe and Power Plant Maintenance
	5.4 Air Charter or Taxi or Aircraft Management Operations
	5.5 Aircraft Rental
	5.6 Avionics Sales and Maintenance
	5.7 Aircraft Storage Hangars
	SASOs engaging in the business of renting and leasing hangars storage space to Aircraft Owners or operators solely for Aircraft storage purposes shall:
	(1) Lease not less than seven thousand (7,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft parking, auto parking and green space.
	(2) Operate the business in a hangar of no less the five thousand (5,000) square feet of hangar and no less than three hundred (300) square feet of office space on the Airport office and Aircraft storage space on the Airport and provide a customer lou...
	(3) Provide a list the Based Aircraft stored within the SASO hangar facilities to the Department semi-annually.
	(4) Keep premises open and services available a minimum of eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per week.
	(5) Ensure that hangar tenants only perform preventive Aircraft maintenance within the hangar on their own Aircraft to the extent permitted in 14 CFR Part 43, as now or hereafter amended. Painting, welding, and any type of Hazardous Material storage s...
	(6) Provide a waste oil receptacle within the immediate vicinity of the hangar(s).  This receptacle shall be capable of holding a minimum of fifty (50) gallons, have secondary containment protection, and be emptied at regular intervals, and be in comp...
	5.8 Aircraft Sales
	5.9 Aircraft Restoration and Refurbishing
	SASOs engaging in Aircraft restoration and refurbishing of Aircraft structures, propellers, accessories, interiors, exteriors, and components shall:
	5.10 Specialized Flying Services
	SASOs engaging in Specialized Flying Services shall:
	(1) Lease not less than five thousand (5,000) square feet of land for offices, Apron, Aircraft parking, auto parking and green space.
	(2) Operate the service from a minimum of five hundred (500) square feet of office space on the Airport and provide a customer lounge, public telephones, and restrooms.
	(3) Employ and make available at least one (1) employee who holds a current FAA commercial pilot certificate and medical certificate with ratings appropriate for  the operator’s Aircraft.

	Section 6  FLYING CLUBS
	6.1 Requirements
	6.1.1 No member (owner) of a Flying Club shall receive compensation for services provided for such Flying Club or its members (owners) unless such member is an  authorized Commercial Operator with the Port District.
	6.1.2 Flying Club Member’s Aircraft shall not be used by non-members.
	6.1.3 No member (owner) shall use Flying Club Aircraft in exchange for compensation.
	6.1.4 Flying Club members (owners) shall file and keep current with the Department a complete membership (owner) list and the investment share held by each member.


	Section 7  EXHIBITS
	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS




